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ADC BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES  

KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES H1 2013
IN EUR MILLION 
INCOME STATEMENT H1 2013 H1 2012

Net interest income 42.9 0

Net fee and commission income 18.2 0

Net gains (losses) on financial instruments designated at fair 
value through profit or loss

1.5 -15.2

Net income (loss) from equity method investments 1.8 0

Total operating income 69.2 -13.4

Operating expenses -57.3 -6.3

Result before tax 11.9 -19.7

Result for the period 7.8 -19.7

BALANCE SHEET 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Cash and short term funds 135.3 183.2

Loans and advances 875.9 886.6

Investment in associates 52.1 54.1

Total assets 1,316.6 1,414.1

Deposits 972.3 1,041.9

Borrowed funds 135.2 161.6

Total liabilities 1,150.9 1,259.5

Total equity 165.7 154.6

RATIOS 30.06.2013 31.12.2012*

Non-performing loans 8.7% 9.2%

Cost / Income ratio** 75% 75%

Loan to deposit ratio 90.1% 85.1%

Employees 1,447 1,362

Branches 64 61

*    Unless otherwise noted.  
**  Cost to income ratio excluding impairment losses on loans and advances. For informational purposes H1 2012 ratio is based on BancABC  
      subgroup financial statements prior to consolidation.
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BANKING OPERATIONS

Botswana, Zimbabwe, Mozambique, Zambia, Tanzania

 — BancABC: leading regional corporate & retail banking group with ope-
rations in Botswana, Mozambique, Tanzania, Zambia, Zimbabwe and a 
group services office in South Africa

Nigeria

 — Union Bank Nigeria: commercial bank in Nigeria with a vast deposit 
base and large blue chip client base

PRIVATE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Zimbabwe

 — Brainworks: indigenous Zimbabwean investment and advisory compa-
ny focused on banking, insurance, mining and the fuel sector

Kenya

 — RHEAL: dynamically growing medical insurance provider for East Afri-
ca - based in Kenya

Rwanda

 — RSwitch: the national payment switch

South Africa

 — iVeri: payment solutions provider at the forefront of payment technolo-
gy - not only on its home continent of Africa, but worldwide

MAIN DIVISION
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REGIONAL PRESENCE

GEOGRAPHIC FOCUS
DEAR SHAREHOLDERS, BUSINESS PARTNERS & FRIENDS OF ADC, 

Over the first half-year of 2013 ADC’s team has largely completed the preparations to transform itself 

from an investment holding company into a pan-African Banking Group. In late 2012, ADC bought 

out its General Partner, ADC Management GmbH from Altira AG to reorganize the Company’s legal 

structure and eliminate the fee structure. In July 2013, we successfully completed the process of 

changing the Company into a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft; AG), which is now trading on the 

Entry Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, simplifying ADC’s future growth prospects, while 

remaining on a highly liquid exchange platform with excellent levels of corporate governance and 

reporting standards. After the listing in the Entry Standard, reporting and transparency standards 

remain high and above minimum Entry Standard requirements, such as the publication of quarterly 

results in addition to full and half year reporting and we also issued a declaration of conformity with 

the German Corporate Governance Code which can be found on ADC’s website. 

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 14 August 2013, enabled the Company to further ma-

nage this growth by increasing the number of Supervisory Board members from three to six and by 

appointing Karima Ola, Chief Investment Officer of ADC, as a member of the German Management 

Board (Vorstand). We welcome the strengthening of the Supervisory and Management Boards at a 

time of tremendous financial and operational growth that will see the Company build highly profitable 

and operationally sound banking subsidiaries across the continent.

BANKING OPERATIONS

BancABC’s stand-alone half-year results were published, showing a net profit for the Group of EUR 

11.9 million, up 133% from the same period last year and close to the 2012 full-year net profit of EUR 

13.8 million. The retail banking segment was the major driver of the growth over the period, achieving 

enough critical mass to increase revenues more than the operational costs of expanding the branch 

network to 64 branches in 5 countries in East and Southern Africa. The cost to income ratio has 

therefore declined to 62% from 75% in the same period last year. 

ADC’s other large banking investment, Union Bank of Nigeria (UBN), released its H1 2013 financial 

results, delivering a half-year net profit of EUR 54.6 million at the bank level, an increase of 52% year-

over-year. Despite a growing profit, newly appointed Group Managing Director, Mr. Emeka Emuwa, 

former Managing Director of Citibank in Nigeria, will focus on ensuring that the bank delivers high 

quality service while simultaneously re-aligning its physical branch network with complimentary new 

channels in order to maximize opportunities with its existent customer base.

PRIVATE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

ADC’s private equity portfolio is also strengthening as Brainworks Capital Management, ADC’s prop-

rietary investment in Zimbabwe, successfully completed a pre-IPO private placement which raised a 

total of EUR 11.5 million for the Company with an additional EUR 1.5 million for one of its subsidiaries. 

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Banking operations

Private equity investments

RWANDA

KENYA

MOZAMBIQUE

SOUTH AFRICA

BOTSWANA

NIGERIA

ZAMBIA

TANZANIA

ZIMBABWE
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RSwitch, ADC’s payment solutions provider in Rwanda, has successfully turned itself around delive-

ring a half-year profit of EUR 199k, increasing from a negative result in H1 2012 of EUR -712k, while 

iVeri steadily grows its innovative and profitable electronic payment solutions across Africa to mid-

sized banks and small-and-medium-sized businesses and entrepreneurs delivering a half-year profit 

of EUR 51k.

Finally, Resolution Health East Africa (RHEAL), is expanding into new markets in East Africa with ope-

rational entities in Kenya and Tanzania and plans to enter the Ugandan and South Sudanese insurance 

markets in the near future. CEO and founder, Peter Nduati, was profiled in the African Forbes June 

2013 edition, highlighting his foresight and leadership qualities that enabled the growth of Kenya’s 

twelfth largest insurance company.

PRIVATE PLACEMENT AND CAPITAL INCREASE

ADC’s Supervisory Board approved the increase of the Company’s current share capital of EUR 

8,606,764 through the partial utilization of existing authorized capital by almost 10%, issuing 860,676 

new registered shares and reaching a new share capital of EUR 9,467,440 registered on 30 July 2013. 

A strategic investor subscribed to all the shares at EUR 9.50 per share in a private placement, raising 

EUR 8.2 million for ADC. 

Furthermore, Management and the Supervisory Board jointly decided to delay the targeted large-

scale capital increase until early 2014 in order to use the momentum of ADC’s growth in 2013 to 

maximize value for existing shareholders. Presenting 2013 financial year data in the securities pro-

spectus is significantly more cost efficient and representative for the Group as it will show more 

than a full year of banking financial statements instead of only five months of consolidated banking 

financials in 2012. The additional funds raised in the capital increase will facilitate ADC to increase 

its shareholdings in core investments as well as expanding into additional key markets, which will 

capitalize existing businesses, increase shareholdings in ADC’s banking operations and allow the for 

new expansion in key markets across the continent. 

RESULTS

In H1 2013, ADC earned a net profit of EUR 7.8 million, compared to a loss of EUR 19.7 million in 

H1 2012. ADC’s H1 2013 profit is mainly attributable to the successful period at BancABC and the 

at equity contribution from ADC’s investment in UBN via Union Global Partners Limited (UGPL). 

On a quarter over quarter basis, Q2 2013 results were lower owing to a one-time gain on sale 

recognized at ADC in Q1 relating to the exit of the BANGE investment, extraordinary specific 

provisioning at BancABC relating to two credits, and lower equity pick up on UGPL due to further 

impairment provisions at UBN Group level relating to final restructuring activities on non-core 

subsidiaries.

At the end of June, ADC had assets totaling EUR 1,316.6 million, down from EUR 1,414.1 million 

at the end of 2012 largely due to the decrease in deposits in the period. Total deposits were stable 

in local currency (BWP), however declined by 6.7 % from EUR 1,041.9 million at 31 December 

2012 to EUR 972,3 million at 30 June 2013 due to exchange rate differences. Net loans and ad-

vances amounted to EUR 875.9 million at the end of H1 2013 compared to EUR 886.6 million at 

year-end 2012. Over the last six months, the marginally lower level in the Group’s total assets, 

deposits and loans are a deliberate slowdown to reduce risk and liquidity pressure as well as ex-

change rate differences.

Total equity increased from EUR 154.6 million at the end of December 2012 to EUR 165.7 million 

at the end of June 2013.

OUTLOOK

ADC’s investments and structural changes over the last 12-18 months have prepared the Group for 

its planned expansion and ultimate goal of becoming a leading pan-African banking Group with opera-

tional entities across the continent. ADC’s team has turned this vision into a reality and will continue 

to prepare for the Group’s capital increase in early 2014, while simultaneously strengthening gover-

nance processes by establishing committees within ADC’s newly expanded Supervisory Board. Over 

the course of the next six months, the Group will refine its strategic plan and prepare to execute the 

planned expansion that will be undertaken over the course of 2014. 

Should you have any questions regarding our expansion strategy, the change in corporate structure 

or any other matter, please do not hesitate to contact us via email: investor-relations@african-deve-

lopment.com or via phone: +49 69 719 12 80 119.

Sincerely yours,

Dirk Harbecke

Chief Executive Officer
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ADC ON THE CAPITAL MARKETS
SHARE INFORMATION

Legal Domicile
Frankfurt, Germany

Legal form
Stock Corporation (AG)1

Shares Outstanding 
9,467,4402

Listing 
XETRA, Frankfurt, Stuttgart, Berlin, Duesseldorf, Tradegate

Market Segment 
Deutsche Boerse / Entry Standard1

ISIN 
DE000A1E8NW9

Bloomberg 
AZC.GR

Reuters 
AZCGne.DE

PERFORMANCE OF THE ADC STOCK 

During the first six months of 2013, ADC’s stock price gained 2.4% increasing from EUR 8.40 at 

the end of December 2012 to EUR 8.60 as at 30 June 2013. The market capitalization thus increa-

sed from EUR 72.3 million to 74.0 million over the period. 

In H1 2013, ADC’s stock outperformed the MSCI Frontier Markets Africa Index, which dropped 

by more than 15% since the end of the last year on growing concerns of emerging market de-

celeration. In the international context ADC’s stock showed positive development, but its growth 

was below the German SDAX, which increased by more than 10% in the first half of 2013, which 

parallels the upward trend of other developed markets worldwide during the reporting period. 

1 Transformation to stock corporation (AG) with similar inclusion into Entry Standard effective as of 26 July 2013.

2 Share capital was increased from 8,606,764 by almost 10% on 30 July 2013.

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE1

ADC’s shareholder structure reflects the company’s strong foundation and consists of a well-

diversified base of strategic shareholders, mutual funds, hedge funds and family offices. 

TRAFIGURA BEHEER B.V.25%

FREE FLOAT36%

CHRISTOPHER CHARLES ROKOS 06%

K2 MOORE LP

05%

JL FALCON GLOBAL FUND

05%

CO MOORE LP

ALTIRA AG

05%
RBC HOLDINGS S.A.R.L.

05%

WELLINGTON CO.LLP

04%
04%

BEN MELKMAN 05%

BOND WITH WARRANTS ATTACHED

In June 2012, ADC issued a 3-year term bond (valid to 31 May 2015) with a fixed interest rate of 

6% per annum. The bond was listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange on 02 July 2012 with the 

ISIN DE000A1PGNY4. Next to the coupon of 6%, the bond has warrants of a total of 2.0 million 

shares attached, entitling the holders to subscribe to up to 2.0 million new ordinary registered 

shares of the company at a share price of EUR 14.00, which offers an upside potential to the 

1 In accordance with §21 para.1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). as at 30 June 2013.
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subscribed bond holders. The main reason for the bond issue was the acquisition of a controlling 

stake in BancABC at the end of July 2012. 

The bond price started the year at EUR 75.00, increasing 28% over the last three months and 

reaching EUR 96.00 at the end of the second quarter, while liquidity remains very flat potentially 

due to the long-term investment horizon of the largest bondholders. Bondholders received their 

first interest payment, EUR 2.4 million, on 01 June 2013. 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ADC’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) took place in Frankfurt/Main on 14 August 2013. Resolu-

tions taken at the AGM have been added to the supplemental report of post balance sheet events 

of this report. 
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ADC has refined its strategy to focus more intently on the banking industry in sub-Saharan Africa. 

ADC’s current focus is on integrating and expanding BancABC and building a pan-African Mer-

chant Banking Group that will target operations in core markets in sub-Saharan Africa including 

SADC (Southern African Development Community), CEMAC (Economic Community of Central 

African States), ECOWAS (Economic Community of West African States) and EAC (East African 

Community) in order to benefit from the rapidly expanding retail, corporate and consumer banking 

operations on the continent. Alongside its banking operations, ADC manages a private equity busi-

ness under the Merchant Banking Platform to profit from proprietary investment opportunities. 

As such, the group structure has been refined into two main divisions: banking operations and 

private equity activities. 

In total, the ADC group employed 1,447 people as of the end of H1 2013, with most people being 

employed in its African operations. An average staff attrition rate of only 0.90% over the course of 

H1 2013 makes ADC confident that the Group is a reliable employer and will continue to source 

highly skilled employees.

Furthermore, the Group contributes significantly to the provision of financial services in African 

markets with its 64 bank branches in 5 Southeast African countries and more than 250,000 custo-

mers served, a 15% increase from December 2012. If associated companies are added, the ADC 

Group aids in the employment of over 6,500 people with more than 400 banking branches in 6 

African countries.

To reflect the focused banking strategy, ADC simplified its corporate structure by taking over its 

General Partner, ADC Management GmbH from Altira AG in November 2012, and as of the end of 

July 2013, has transformed its organizational structure from a private equity company in the legal 

form of a partnership limited by shares (GmbH & Co. KGaA) into a stock corporation (AG). The 

objective of the transformation is to provide shareholders with more control, further improve cor-

porate governance and eliminate the previous management fee structure. The transformation was 

completed on 26 July 2013, with a re-listing in the Entry Standard segment of the Frankfurt Stock 

Exchange. The new listing will reduce costs while increasing operational flexibility and maintaining 

a high level of reporting exceeding Entry Standard requirements.

At its AGM held on 14 August, ADC appointed KPMG as its Group auditor in order to streamline 

the overall audit process with its subsidiaries and investee companies in Africa. The appointment 

of the internationally accredited auditor will ensure that high levels of transparency are applied 

while simplifying the process on the Group level. Management and the Supervisory Board will 

continue to make a voluntary declaration of conformity to the German Corporate Governance 

Code. Full Annual Reports will conform to IAS / IFRS standards and will be released within the 

first four months of year-end. The half-year interim report and reduced interim reports (Q1 & Q3) 

will be released within two months of the end of the period. The communication language for all 

reporting going forward will be in English only.

GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT

PRIVATE EQUITYBANKING OPERATIONS

50.1%¹

BancABC

South-East-Africa

BancABC

Botswana

BancABC

Mozambique

BancABC

Tanzania

BancABC

Zambia

BancABC

Zimbabwe

100% 100% 94% 100% 100% 65%³

UBN

Nigeria

RHEAL

Kenya, Insurance, 38.74%

RSwitch

Rwanda, Payments, 88.54%

iVeri

South Africa, Payments, 49.0%

6.35%²

UGPL

Mauritius

ADVISORY SERVICES

BRAINWORKS

Zimbabwe, Country satellite, 19.0 %

Additionally ADC holds further subsidiaries that are either not material or just shells that are described in the notes to the financial statements.

1     ADC holds a direct shareholding of 47.1% in BancABC but controls additional shares through pooling agreements.

2     ADC has a direct stake of 6.35% in the consortium Union Global Partners Limited (UGPL), the controlling shareholder of Union Bank of   

  Nigeria.

3     Out of 65.0% shareholding in UBN, 3.6% are controlled by UGPL through a pooling agreement but held outside UGPL.

GROUP STRUCTURE
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BANKING OPERATIONS
BANKING OPERATIONS BancABC1

ADC’s banking investment, BancABC, released its H1 2013 financial results, delivering a half year 

profit after tax of EUR 11.9 million before consolidation into ADC. The consolidated half year profit 

contribution of BancABC to ADC’s H1 2013 accounts amounts to EUR 8.9 million after consolidation2. 

This is an increase of 68% of BancABC’s H1 2012 results of EUR 5.3 million. BancABC employees 

increased to 1,391 in H1 2013 up 6% from the end of December 2012. 

During the half-year to 30 June 2013, three retail branches were opened to bring the total number of 

branches to 64. BancABC’s impressive growth has not been without its challenges and risk manage-

ment will remain a focus point for the Group going forward. In order to ensure that this growth is 

sustained, Management has identified credit, liquidity and operational risks as the key risks the group 

will actively manage in the coming year. 

Total operating income for the half-year was EUR 65.9 million after consolidation at the Group level. 

Revenues include net interest income EUR 44.7 million, and non-interest income of EUR 30.0 milli-

on, up 74% and 58% from H1 2012 results respectively. 

Net impairments of EUR 8.8 million was up 159% on EUR 3.4 million charged in the prior year. EUR 

7.3 million of this charge was in respect of two clients, with one in each of Tanzania and Mozambique. 

The bank is pursuing recovery of the loans through the legal system in the respective countries and is 

confident that a significant amount of the provision will be recovered. Notwithstanding the increase 

on provisions, the quality of the book is relatively stable with gross non-performing loans decreasing 

from 9.2% in December 2012 to 8.7% at the end of June 2013. 

At 30 June 2013 gross loans and advances were at EUR 920.2 million almost at the same size of 

the loan book as at 31 December 2012. Total assets as at 30 June 30 2013 remain solid at EUR 1.3 

billion at the same level as at 31 December 2012. Total deposits were stable in local currency (BWP), 

however declined by 6.7% from EUR 1,041.9 million at 31 December 2012 to EUR 972.3 million at 

30 June 2013 due to exchange rate differences. Over the last six months, the marginally lower level 

in the Group’s total assets, deposits and loans are a deliberate slowdown to reduce risk and liquidity 

pressure. 

Operating expenses increased to EUR 52.9 million compared with the same time last year due to the 

Group’s retail banking expansion as well as the first time consolidation while the stand-alone cost-to-

income ratio improved from 75% in H1 2012 to 62% in the period under review, the cost-to-income 

ratio in the Group segment banking operations BancABC improved just slightly to 71% reflecting the 

first time additional amortization of intangibles associated with the acquisition as well as the elimina-

tion of  intercompany income. 

BancABC was trading at the end of H1 2012 at price to book ratio of 0.91x, compared to ADC’s ave-

rage entry price of 1.03x book, The decreased valuation is in spite of the Group’s strong growth over 

the last two years, which leaves BancABC’s stock price undervalued.

1 As consolidated into ADC Group accounts in H1 2013; relative comparison to prior year values are based on BancABC 

standalone basis in local currency.

2 As BancABC is consolidated into ADC all intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses have to be eliminated 

in full.

PROFIT CONTRIBUTION BY COUNTRY ENTITY (IN%)

BancABC ZIMBABWE

28.0%

BancABC BOTSWANA

47.1%

BancABC MOZAMBIQUE

5.5%

BancABC TANZANIA

0.3%

BancABC ZAMBIA

19.1%

 

DEPOSITS AND NET LOAN BOOK (IN EUR MILLION)
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RETURN ON EQUITY (LTM ANNUALIZED)1 TOTAL ASSETS (IN EUR MILLION)
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1 Last twelve months figures just available from Q3 2013.
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COST TO INCOME RATIO (IN %)

 

BANCABC BOTSWANA

BancABC Botswana recorded a half-year profit after tax of EUR 7.5 million. Results were based 

on total operating income for the half-year of EUR 20.1 million up 98% from H1 2012. Revenues 

include net interest income of EUR 17.7 million, and non-interest income of EUR 3.4 million, up 

111% and 8% from H1 2012 results respectively. 

Impairment charges of EUR 1.0 million in the current period decreased from the prior year charges 

of EUR 1.4 million. Gross non-performing loans were 1.8%, which was the same ratio as June 

2012.

Deposit growth increased by 13% compared to 31 December 2012, with total deposits of EUR 

428.1 million. Loans and advances were up 7% at EUR 324.8 million for the half year, while total 

assets remained relatively stable and ended at EUR 431.2 million. 

Operating expenses increased by 77% from the same time last year due to operational expansion 

and performance related pay, though the overall cost-to-income ratio improved from 57% in H1 

2012 to 49% in the period under review. 

BANCABC MOZAMBIQUE

BancABC Mozambique recorded a half-year profit after tax of EUR 877k. This is a decrease of 32% 

of the subsidiary’s H1 2012 results of EUR 1.3 million due to an increase in loan impairments and 

operating expenses. Results were based on total operating income for the half-year of EUR 7.4 

million, up 14% from H1 2012. Revenues include net interest income of EUR 5.3 million, and non-

interest income of EUR 3.7 million, up 25% and 14% from H1 2012 results respectively. 

Impairments increased by 86% from EUR 956k in 2012 to EUR 1.6 million in H1 2013, due to a 

charge on one large borrowing customer. Gross non-performing loans deteriorated in the period 

from 7.4% in June 2012 to 12.8% in the current period. 

Deposit growth increased by 21% compared to December 2012, with total deposits of EUR 145.3 

million. Loans and advances were up 17% at EUR 91.1 million for the half year, while total assets 

ended at EUR 134.0 million as at June 30, 2013, an increase of 14% from the EUR 129.2 million 

as at 31 December 2012. 

Operating expenses increased by 29% from the same time last year, though the overall cost-to-

income ratio increased only marginally from 64% in H1 2012 to 67% in the period under review. 

New branches are yet to start contributing to revenue, which has had a negative impact on profi-

tability during the period. These branches are expected to contribute to the overall profitability of 

the subsidiary within the next year. 

BANCABC TANZANIA

BancABC Tanzania recorded a half-year profit after tax of EUR 55k. This is an increase from the 

subsidiary’s negative H1 2012 results of EUR -495k. Results were based on total operating income 

for the half-year of EUR 5.4 million, up 74% from H1 2012. Revenues include net interest income 

of EUR 1.6 million, and non-interest income of EUR 3.6 million, up 12% and 38% from H1 2012 

results respectively. 

Impairments have reduced from a charge of EUR 956k in 2012 to a recovery of EUR 209k in the 

current period. The Group has actively intervened to strengthen the subsidiary’s balance sheet 

and all non-performing loans were transferred to a non-banking subsidiary. The combined business 

operations (the non-banking subsidiary holding the NPLs and BancABC Tanzania) posted a loss of 

EUR 4.1 million which adversely affected ADC’s H1 2013 consolidated income statement.

Deposit growth increased by 3% compared to December 2012, with total deposits of EUR 105.0 

million. Total loans and advances decreased 21% to EUR 52.6 million for the half-year, while total 

assets ended at EUR 82.3 million as at 30 June 2013, a decrease of 16% from EUR 107.5 million as 

at 31 December 2012. The Tanzanian subsidiary’s liquidity ratio fell below Central Bank regulations, 

prompting a Central Bank ban on new loans until capital ratios are restored. BancABC hopes to 

resolve the situation in Q3 2013 after having injected fresh capital into the entity and transferring 

the non-performing loans to the non-banking subsidiary.  

Operating expenses increased by 41% from the same time last year, while the overall cost-to-

income ratio deteriorated from 94% in H1 2012 to 102% in the period under review. 

BANCABC ZAMBIA

BancABC Zambia recorded a half-year profit after tax of EUR 3.1 million. This is an increase of 

94% of the subsidiary’s H1 2012 results of EUR 1.6 million. Results were based on total operating 

income for the half-year of EUR 11.4 million, up 52% from H1 2012. Revenues include net interest 

income of EUR 3.9 million, and non-interest income of EUR 7.3 million, up 24% and 83% from H1 

2012 results respectively. 

Impairments in the period were insignificant and a recovery of a previously provided loan led to a 

net recovery of EUR 186k for the period. The quality of the loan book was stable with gross non-

performing loans reducing marginally from 4.3% in June 2012 to 4.3% in the June 2013. 

Deposit growth increased by 25% compared to December 2012, with total deposits of EUR 92.6 

million. Loans and advances were up 9% at EUR 100.2 million for the half year, while total assets 

ended at EUR 140.8 million as at June 30, 2013, an increase of 13% from EUR 136.8 million as at 

31 December 2012. 

Operating expenses increased by 30% from the same time last year, though the overall cost-to-

income ratio improved from 72% in H1 2012 to 59% in the period under review. 

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

2009 2010 2011 2012 H1 201360%

82 %

77 %

74 %

75 %

71 %



22 23GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT   ADC INTERIM REPORT 2013

BANCABC ZIMBABWE

BancABC Zimbabwe recorded a half-year profit after tax of EUR 8.61 million. This is an increase of 

79% of the subsidiary’s H1 2012 results of EUR 4.8 million. Results were based on total operating 

income for the half-year of EUR 26.2 million. Revenues include net interest income of EUR 16.9 

million, and non-interest income of EUR 9.8 million. 

Impairments for the period totaled EUR 535k2 compared to EUR 96k in the prior year comparative. 

Gross non-performing loans increased from 5.2% in June 2012 to 9.1% in June 2013.

Deposit growth decreased by 26% compared to December 2012, with total deposits of EUR 201.3 

million. The decrease of deposits is largely due to tight liquidity in the Zimbabwean financial mar-

ket and the impact of the insecurity surrounding the August elections. Loans and advances were 

up 4% at EUR 276.8 million for the half year, while total assets ended at EUR 351.9 million as at 

30 June 2013, a decrease of 7% from EUR 413.5 million as at 31 December 2012. 

Operating expenses increased by 34% from the same time last year, though the overall cost-to-

income ratio improved from 65% in H1 2012 to 59% in the period under review. 

BANKING OPERATIONS UNION BANK OF NIGERIA

Union Bank of Nigeria (UBN) released its H1 2013 financial results, delivering a half-year profit after 

tax of NGN 9.4 billion (EUR 42.2 million) at group level, down 6% from H1 2012. At a bank level, profit 

after tax was NGN 11.3 billion (EUR 54.6 million), an increase of 52% year-over-year. Profit at the bank 

level for Q2 2013 totaled NGN 6.6 billion (EUR 31.2 million), a 39% increase on Q1 2013 net profit of 

4.8 billion (EUR 23.7 million). At group level, Q2 underperfor-

med Q1 due to further impairment provisions taken and final 

restructuring activities relating to non-core subsidiaries.

This was driven by gross revenues for the period of NGN 56.2 

billion (EUR 270.4 million) at group level, and gross revenues 

of NGN 48.1 billion (EUR 231.8 million) at bank level. Net inte-

rest income at bank level totaled NGN 28.8 billion (EUR 138.8 

million), down 8% year-over-year, and non-interest income of 

NGN 7.9 billion (EUR 38.0 million), up 14% vs. H1 2012.

Bank operating income was down 4% year-over-year, at NGN 

36.7 billion (EUR 176.8 million). This was largely due to an in-

crease in interest expenses, as cost of funds increased over 

the last year.

Deposit growth at the bank was down by 6% compared to 

the end the 2012 financial year, with total deposits of NGN 

456.9 billion (EUR 2.2 billion). Gross loans were up 15%, at 

NGN 168.0 billion (EUR 794.3 million) for the half-year, while 

investment securities increased to NGN 297.4 billion (EUR 

1 ADC recorded a single loan impairment of EUR 5.3 million on group level in December 2012 whereas BancABC Zimbab-

we captured the same in 2013 as its stand-alone books were closed at that time. 

2 Ibid.

3.9%*
ADC (INDIRECT) STAKE

UNION BANK OF NIGERIA (UBN)*
LOCATION:   LAGOS, NIGERIA
SEGMENT:   BANKING OPERATIONS
DATE OF INVESTMENT:   JUNE 2012
CAPITAL INVESTED:   EUR 23.9 MILLION
CARRYING AMOUNT:   EUR 40.6 MILLION
ADC (INDIRECT) STAKE:   3.9 %*
MULTIPLE:  1.7x
IRR:   43 %

*Held through 6.35% investment in UGPL which in turn 
control 65% of the outstanding shares of UBN.

H1 2012 FY 2012

0.65

2.16

0.66

2.35

DepositsLoan Book

H12013
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2.16

1.4 billion), up 6% for the half-year ended 30 June 2013. Total assets at bank level ended the half-year 

period at NGN 826.7 billion (EUR 3.9 billion), a 7% decrease from 31 December 2012, which totaled 

NGN 886.5 (EUR 4.3 billion).

Net interest margins declined slightly to 9.5% in H1 2013 from 10.7% in H1 2012. Total asset yields 

finished the period at 13.2%, down marginally from 13.4% in H1 2012. UBN’s funding costs rose to 

4.5% from 3.5% in H1 2012.

Operational costs fell 23% year-on-year with the cost-to-income ratio falling from 82% in H1 2012 to 

65% in H1 2013.

DEPOSITS AND NET LOAN BOOK (IN EUR BILLION)

RETURN ON EQUITY (LTM ANNUALIZED) TOTAL ASSETS (IN EUR BILLION)
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ADC’s well-diversified financial services private equity portfolio at the end of H1 2013 consisted of 

investments in a private equity country satellite (Brainworks Capital Management in Zimbabwe), 

in the insurance sector (RHEAL in Kenya) and in the payment solutions sector (RSwitch in Rwanda 

and iVeri in South Africa). 

PRIVATE EQUITY PORTFOLIO ALLOCATION BY SECTOR (IN%)1

PRIVATE EQUITY PORTFOLIO ALLOCATION BY REGION (IN%)2

1 Based on the fair value of the portfolio companies classified as private equity investments, RSwitch value according to 

impairment test at year-end 2012, as it is consolidated into ADC accounts.

2 Based on the fair value of the portfolio companies classified as private equity investments, RSwitch value according 

to impairment test at year-end 2012, as it is consolidated into ADC accounts. The sectors do not represent operating 

segments according to IFRS 8.

PRIVATE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

COUNTRY SATELLITES

43%

PAYMENT SOLUTIONS

33%

INSURANCES

25%

EAST AFRICA

53%
SOUTHERN AFRICA

47%

PERFORMANCE IN THE PRIVATE EQUITY PORTFOLIO1

The performance in the private equity portfolio is calculated based on the equity investment of 

ADC at entry into the portfolio company compared to the fair value as of 30 June 2013. 

Valuations as of 30 June 2013. (1) Including dividend payments. (2) On initial investment amount.

The overall performance of the private equity portfolio as of 30 June 2013 is an IRR of 15% and a 

multiple of 1.4x.

1 Based on the fair value of the portfolio companies classified as private equity investments, RSwitch value according to 

impairment test at year-end 2012, as it is consolidated into ADC accounts.

BRAINWORKS CAPITAL
Zimbabwe

4.0
6.6

2.5
RHEAL
Kenya

3.8

Country satellite Insurance

RSWITCH
Rwanda

7.1
4.0

IVERI
South Africa

0.2 0.7

ECOBANK ZIMBABWE
Zimbabwe

3.0 4.0

BRD
Rwanda

4.3 5.0

Payment solutions Exit

Fair value of ADC‘s equity stakeInvestment

BANGE
Equatorial Guinea

2.7

9.0

BRAIN-
WORKS RHEAL RSWITCH IVERI BANGE ECOBANK 

ZIMBABWE BRD

HOLDING 19 % 38.74 % 88.54 % 49.00 % Realized Realized Realized

INVEST. DATE Dec 2011 Dec 2010 Jun 2008 Oct 2008 Dec 2008 Dec 2009 July 2008

IRR1 39 % 19 % -22 % 28 % 34 % 15 % 16 %

MULTIPLE2 1.6x 1.5x 0.6x 3.1x 3.4x 1.3x 1.2x
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ADC acquired its stake in BANGE in December 2008 for EUR 

2.7 million when the bank faced huge losses. ADC successfully 

managed the turnaround of the institution, for example by con-

tributing know-how and transferring management capacity, the-

reby enabling the bank to pay its first dividend in 2011. At the 

beginning of 2012, ADC refined its strategy to focus on larger 

countries with controlling stakes in its banking operations. After 

a 4-year investment period, ADC handed the management of the 

bank to a local CEO and started preparations for its exit. 

ADC exited its stake in BANGE by selling to the majority share-

holder in the bank on 06 May 2013 at a valuation of EUR 9.0 

million. 

During the first half of the year, Brainworks’ activities were lar-

gely focused on the completion of a pre-IPO private placement, 

which raised a total of USD 14.9 million (EUR 11.5 million), dilu-

ting ADC’s stake from 28% to 19%. Red Rock Capital, a foreign 

investor, subscribed to 16.4% of Brainworks, injecting a total of 

USD 6.0 million (EUR 4.6 million) into the company. 

Brainworks Capital Management completed two major transac-

tions in the first half of 2013. It acquired a 31.8% shareholding in 

African Sun Hotels through a swap of shares with Nhaka Trust. 

Furthermore, a foreign investor was secured for FML Oil Com-

pany Zimbabwe, injecting USD 2.0 million (EUR 1.5 million) into 

the subsidiary, which awaits Zimbabwe Reserve Bank Exchange 

Control approval.

Advisory activity was subdued in the first half of 2013, owing to 

the pre-electoral period and as a result no advisory fees were 

earned in H1 2013. Total revenues of USD 1.6 million (EUR 1.2 million) were generated from the 

revaluation of listed securities, dividends and interest income and after operating expenses of 

USD 495k (EUR 377k), profit after tax totaled USD 217k (EUR 165k) in the period under review.

The balance sheet of Brainworks grew 50% to USD 39 million (EUR 29.9 million) from USD 26 

million (EUR 20.0 million) as at 31 December 2012 driven by a growth in investments. Investments 

in subsidiaries increased to USD 998k (EUR 767k) and investment in associates increased by 63% 

to USD 25 million (EUR 19.2 million). Property and equipment increased by USD 335k (EUR 258k), 

largely as a result of the acquisition of an office building which will house the Company and some 

of its portfolio investments as soon as works are completed.

EXIT
BANCO NACIONAL DE GUINEA ECUATORIAL 
(BANGE)
LOCATION:   MALABO, EQUATORIAL GUINEA
SEGMENT:   PRIVATE EQUITY & ADVISORY
SECTOR:    BANKING
DATE OF INVESTMENT:   DECEMBER 2008
EXIT DATE:   06 MAY 2013
CAPITAL INVESTED:   EUR 2.7 MILLION
REALIZED VALUE:   EUR 9.0 MILLION
MULTIPLE:  3.4x
IRR:   34 %

19.0%
ADC STAKE

BRAINWORKS CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LIMITED
LOCATION:   HARARE, ZIMBABWE
SEGMENT:   PRIVATE EQUITY & ADVISORY
SECTOR:   COUNTRY SATELLITE
DATE OF INVESTMENT:   DECEMBER 2011
CAPITAL INVESTED:   EUR 4.0 MILLION
CURRENT VALUATION:   EUR 6.6 MILLION
ADC STAKE:   19.0 %
MULTIPLE:   1.6x
IRR:   39 %

Peter Nduati, CEO of RHEAL, was highlighted in the recent Af-

rican Forbes magazine1, for his work in founding and growing 

RHEAL over the last 10 years. The company started with only 

3,000 customers, a business plan and angel funding, but has 

since grown into a leading medical insurance company with a 

20% market share in Kenya that is ranked 12th in the overall 

insurance industry by balance sheet size in an industry of 43 

players. RHEAL currently has revenues of KES 2.4 billion (USD 

27.7 million) in a market with insurance penetration of only 3%. 

The article highlights Nduati’s decision to open up medical co-

verage for HIV positive people without the need for a test in 

2007 as well as being one of the first to offer gynecology and 

maternity products, which helped the company grow 50% per 

year from its inception to 2008, when post-election violence in 

Kenya temporarily curbed the company’s upward growth trends. 

Currently, RHEAL has operational entities in Kenya and Tanzania 

and is setting up a presence in Uganda and South Sudan. It is 

supported by more than 400 agents and brokers and at the end of June 2013, RHEAL’s active 

members in Kenya totaled 58,694, an 8% increase from Q1 2013, while Tanzania’s active mem-

bers totaled 2,474, a 25% increase from Q1 2013. RHEAL’s gross premiums totaled KES 210.7 

million (EUR 1.8 million) in H1 2013, an increase of 23% versus KES 171.6 million (EUR 1.5 million) 

in H1 2012. Claims were also up, by 17%, showing a positive overall growth trend.

Responsible
Smart & Secure

World-class technology & services
Innovative

Transparent
Customer-oriented

Honest

RSwitch Ltd. released its H1 2013 financial results, delivering a 

half year profit after tax of RWF 171.9 million (EUR 199k), increa-

sing from a negative result in H1 2012 of RWF -548 million (EUR 

–712k). This was driven by gross revenues of RWF 1.2 billion 

(EUR 1.4 million), an 83% increase from gross revenues of RWF 

645 million (EUR 838k) in H1 2012. Operational expenditures fell 

17% from the same time last year with the cost-to-income ratio 

falling 178% from 266% in H1 2012 to 88% in H1 2013. Total 

assets ended the first half of the year at RWF 2.2 billion (EUR 

2.6 million), versus RWF 2.0 billion (EUR 2.4 million) at year end 

2012. Q2 2013 net profit was 14% lower than Q1 2013 net profit, totaling RWF 79.4 million (EUR 

94.6k). Total income was 21% higher in Q2 2013 compared to that of Q1 2013, but the total cost of 

sales rose by 38% in the quarter due to the initiations of projects yet to deliver expected revenues. 

1 Mulunda, Luke, “Say Yes, Make Millions”, Forbes Africa, June 2013, pg 60-61

ADC STAKE

38.74%
RESOLUTION HEALTH EAST AFRICA LIMITED 
(RHEAL)
LOCATION:   NAIROBI, KENYA
SEGMENT:   PRIVATE EQUITY & ADVISORY
SECTOR:  INSURANCE
DATE OF INVESTMENT:   DECEMBER 2010
CAPITAL INVESTED:   EUR 2.5 MILLION 
CURRENT VALUATION:   EUR 3.8 MILLION
ADC STAKE:   38.74 % (DIRECT & INDIRECT) 
MULTIPLE:    1.5x
IRR:   19 %

88.54%
ADC STAKE

RSWITCH LTD. 
LOCATION:   KIGALI, RWANDA
SEGMENT:   PRIVATE EQUITY & ADVISORY
SECTOR:   PAYMENT SOLUTIONS
DATE OF INVESTMENT:    JUNE 2008
CAPITAL INVESTED:   EUR 7.1 MILLION
CURRENT VALUATION:    EUR 4.0 MILLION
ADC STAKE:   88.54 %
MULTIPLE:   0.6x
IRR:   -22.0 %
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At the end June 2013, RSwitch maintained 94 Automatic Teller Machines (ATMs) and monitored 

240 versus 69 and 168 in H1 2012 respectively. The number of proprietary debit cards issued in 

the first half of the year increased 22% from the same time last year from 55,459 at the end of 

June 2012 to 67,858 at the end of June 2013. Furthermore, due to the new pricing structure im-

plemented with 2-year service agreements with its customers effective from 2013, the number 

of charged transactions has increased from 14,493 in June 2012 to 361,642 in March 2013, effec-

tively changing RSwitch’s business case and future profitability.

In Q2 2013, Nedbank, one of South Africa’s top retail banks, 

launched pocketPOS using iVeri’s technology. PocketPOS is 

a mobile point-of-sale solution aimed at small and medium 

sized businesses that enables users to process credit and 

debit transactions via Bluetooth on a smartphone.  iVeri was 

the first to launch this mobile POS CHIP & PIN technology 

in Africa and the Middle East. The technology is certified by 

MasterCard, Visa and American Express.

iVeri released its H1 2013 results, delivering a half year profit 

after tax of ZAR 671k (EUR 51k), increasing from the H1 

2012 result of ZAR 331k (EUR 25k). This was driven by gross 

revenues of ZAR 7.6 million, a 9.24% increase from gross 

revenues of ZAR 7.0 million in H1 2012 with operating ex-

penditures increasing 2.4% from the same time last year. 

49.0%
plus 25.1 % in evriPay

ADC STAKE

IVERI PAYMENT TECHNOLOGIES (PTY) LTD.
LOCATION:  JOHANNESBURG, SOUTH AFRICA
SEGMENT:   PRIVATE EQUITY & ADVISORY
SECTOR:   PAYMENT SOLUTIONS
DATE OF INVESTMENT:   NOVEMBER 2008
CAPITAL INVESTED:   EUR 236k + EUR 370k IN  
EVRIPAY (BUSINESS LINE OF IVERI)
CURRENT VALUATION:   EUR 734K + EUR 351K IN EVRIPAY
ADC STAKE:   49.0 % + 25.1 % IN EVRIPAY
MULTIPLE:   3.1x 
IRR:    28 %

MARKET ENVIRONMENT
SUB-SAHARAN AFRICA (SSA)

According to the recently updated World Economic Outlook Database, sub-Saharan Africa is pro-

jected to grow about 5.5% in 2013, rising to 6.1% in 2014.1 Inflation is on a downward trend and 

expected to average 7.2% in 2013, down from an average of 9.1% in 2012 and projected to drop 

even further, reaching 5.7% by 2015. The most recent numbers and estimates suggest that the 

average external debt as a percentage of GDP in the sub-Saharan region averages 25% and will 

increase only slightly over the next two years.2  

Additional macroeconomic indicators show a healthy and growing continent with the average 

inflation rate dropping from 46% in 1994 to just over 7% today. Similarly, GDP has risen steadily 

from USD 267 billion to USD 1,333 billion over the same period.3  

A compound growth rate of over 12% in the last decade has created an emerging middle class in 

Africa that is estimated to be roughly the size of the Indian economy with 28% of workers having a 

wage-paying job. If current growth rates continue, it is estimated that between 54-72 million more 

wage paying jobs will be created in the region over the next decade.4  

High GDP growth rates, growing populations, a rising middle class and a more educated populati-

on is promising for the growth of retail banks over the next decade as branches offer new financial 

products to existing customers and institutions reach out to the unbanked via new technologies, 

such as mobile devices which now have an astonishing 70% penetration rate across the conti-

nent.5   

Many African nations are now depositing at least 20-30% of national GDP in local bank accounts6, 

which is a positive development for economic progress and financial inclusion; however, retail 

lending by banks has lagged behind and is often as low as 5-10% of GDP.7  The gap in the credit-

deposit ratio is critical for the development of the financial services industry and crucial for local 

businesses and the overall economy.

A report issued by Moody’s in June 2013, reports that banking systems across sub-Saharan Africa 

have grown and strengthened due to strong Macroeconomic growth and improvements in regula-

tory environments. The credit agency predicts that most banking regions will continue this upward 

growth trend, but that some countries will experience risks related to commodity price fluctua-

tions, management and socio-political instability. Constantinos Kypreos, a Moody’s vice president 

and author of the report, states that “macroeconomic developments will have a favourable impact 

on sub-Saharan Africa banking systems, with the potential for double-digit balance-sheet growth 

and new business opportunities, especially in corporate banking” and “considers that the poten-

1 International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook Database, April 2013.

2 Ibid.

3 Ibid.

4 Gallup Business Journal, African Banks must prepare for a Boom, October 2012

5 Ibid.

6 World Bank Financial Structures Database, 2010.

7 Ibid.
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tial for further banking penetration remains substantial, particularly for material growth in retail 

banking.”1 

The reports commends the region’s progress in regulatory and supervisory practices, which are 

moving closer to international standards but that credit agencies need to be strengthened to 

improve the quality of information about borrowers to banks, ultimately benefitting both banks 

and consumers. Moody’s predicts that downside risks remain, but that non-performing loans will 

continue to remain below historical levels, owing to an improvement in both the management of 

the financial institutions and regulatory scrutiny. 

ADC’s core banking investments, BancABC and UBN, are located in countries that have actively 

managed their financial sectors, improving regulatory agencies and taking steps to strengthen 

credit agencies. ADC’s experience and active management approach is beneficial for the growth 

of these institutions by strengthening internal controls and accounting practices, ensuring that 

asset quality remains high and that governance is an integral part of the growth story.

PORTFOLIO COUNTRIES AT A GLANCE - MACROECONOMICS2

2013 2014 2014

GDP
(CURRENT PRICES 

IN USD BN)

GDP GROWTH 
PROJECTIONS
(IN PERCENT)

INFLATION 
PROJECTIONS
(IN PERCENT)

BOTSWANA 18.3 4.2 7.2

KENYA 46.5 6.2 5.0

MOZAMBIQUE 15.8 8.0 5.6

NIGERIA 283.7 7.0 8.2

RWANDA 7.8 7.2 5.8

SOUTH AFRICA 376.0 3.4 5.5

TANZANIA 31.9 7.2 5.9

ZAMBIA 23.1 8.0 5.5

ZIMBABWE 11.0 5.7 4.2

IMPACT ON OPERATIONS

Overall, ADC’s operations have performed well in H1 2013 and are in line with the market environ-

ment. Detailed information on the impact of the market environment on operations can be found 

in the description of the operational performance of the individual subsidiaries and associates.

1 Moody’s, “Sub-Saharan Africa Banking Overview”, June 2013

2 International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook Database, April 2013.

Due to the acquisition of a controlling stake in BancABC and subsequent consolidation from 27 

July 2012, ADC’s financial results have undertaken significant changes compared to H1 2012, 

effectively transforming the structure of the financial statements into an operational merchant 

banking group with two major business divisions, namely banking operations and private equity 

investments. The banking operations mainly consist of the full consolidation of ADC’s new subsi-

diary BancABC, while the strategic associate UBN is accounted for at equity in H1 2013 results. 

The private equity investments are held for sale and are mainly accounted for at fair value apart 

from RSwitch which is consolidated into ADC’s accounts due to its controlling stake. Therefore, 

main changes in the presentation of financial results are attributable to the first time consolidation 

of BancABC, making relevant comparisons to previous year figures difficult. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In H1 2013, ADC earned INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME of EUR 92.3 million compared to EUR 

154k in H1 2012. Interest income was mainly attributable to provided loans and advances with 

84%. INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSES of EUR 49.4 million in H1 2013 mainly consisted of inte-

rest payments on deposits to corporate clients and retail clients (86%) as well as interest pay-

ments for loans (14%). 

NET INTEREST INCOME of EUR 42.9 million was realized in H1 2013.  Prior year comparisons are 

not relevant as banking activities were consolidated only from 27 July 2012.  However, in compa-

rison with Q1 2013, net interest income was down 8.4% as a direct result of lower net loans and 

advances outstanding in the quarter relating largely to significant specific provisions taken during 

the course of Q2. 

ADC had CREDIT LOSS EXPENSES of EUR 8.8 million in H1 2013 (EUR 0 in prior year period), mainly 

coming from an increase in specific impairments (95%) relating to two major credits outstan-

ding in Mozambique and Tanzania worth EUR 6.9 million (BWP 74 million). Local management is 

pushing hard for collection and reversal impairments during the coming months. 

Therefore, NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSS came in at EUR 34.1 milli-

on, compared to EUR -49k in H1 2012 prior to the consolidation of BancABC.

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME came in at EUR 18.2 million in H1 2013 (EUR 0 in prior year 

period). Main contributors were fees on loans and advances (EUR 9.2 million), cash transaction 

fees (EUR 5.3 million), and other fees (EUR 2.9 million). 

NET GAINS ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

came in at EUR 1.5 million in H1 2013 compared to losses of EUR 15.2 million in H1 2012.  2013 

gains relate primarily to the increase in value of ADC’s stake in BANGE prior to sale, while 2012 

FINANCIAL RESULTS
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losses related to fair value losses on its 25.9% stake in BancABC as per 30 June 2012 and the 

write-down on the option to acquire a further stake in ADC’s investment in BANGE. 

NET TRADING INCOME of EUR 9.4 million was realized in H1 2013 compared to EUR 0 in H1 2012. 

This includes primarily foreign exchange income of EUR 8.1 million from gains and losses on spot 

and forward contracts and other currency derivatives. 

NET INCOME FROM EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS of EUR 1.8 million was realized in H1 2013 

compared to EUR 0 in H1 2012, and represented ADC’s share in the net income of Union Global 

Partners Limited (UGPL) generated by the underlying 61.35% consolidated majority investment in 

UBN as at 30 June 2013.1  

OTHER NON-INTEREST INCOME of EUR 4.3 million in H1 2013 (EUR 1.9 million in H1 2012) mainly 

consists of rental and other income of EUR 1.7 million, RSwitch revenues of EUR 1.5 million, and 

other non-interest income of EUR 1.1 million. In H1 2012 main contributors were RSwitch revenu-

es of EUR 0.6 million and other non-interest income of EUR 1.2 million.

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME came in at EUR 69.2 million in H1 2013 compared to an operating loss 

of EUR 13.4 million in H1 2012.

OPERATING EXPENSES were EUR 57.3 million in H1 2013 compared to EUR 6.3 million in H1 2012. 

Operating expenses include EUR 11.8 million in administrative expenses primarily at BancABC 

(including IT expenses), EUR 8.9 million in depreciation and amortization including EUR 8.7 million 

relating to BancABC subgroup. Furthermore, it includes EUR 4.4 million in cost of materials prima-

rily from consolidation of BancABC and RSwitch, EUR 3.9 million in property lease rentals relating 

to BancABC’s pan-African branch network, EUR 2.2 million in marketing expenses, and EUR 1.6 

million in travel expenses. 

Staff expenses amounted to EUR 22.2 million compared with EUR 0.3 in H1 2012.  Main driver 

of the increase is the consolidation of BancABC resulting in 1,447 group employees at the end of 

the 2013 half-year. 

Furthermore, operating expenses include EUR 2.3 million in sundry and other expenses in H1 

2013 compared with EUR 2.2 million in H1 2012.

The cost to income ratio for ADC group was 75% in H1 2013, higher when compared to BancABC’s 

standalone ratio of 71%2 for full year 2012 owing largely to extraordinary specific provisioning at 

BancABC in Q2 2013 as well as the impact of first time consolidation bookings at Group level.

As a result, PROFIT BEFORE TAX came in at EUR 11.9 million in H1 2013 compared to a loss of EUR 

19.7 million in H1 2012. Income tax expenses in H1 2013 amounted to EUR 4.2 million compared 

to EUR 0 in H1 2012, resulting in a NET PROFIT FOR THE HALF YEAR of EUR 7.8 million, compared 

to a loss of EUR 19.7 million in H1 2012. 

ADC’s H1 2013 profit is mainly attributable to the successful quarter at BancABC and the at equity 

contribution from ADC’s investment in UGPL. On a quarter over quarter basis, Q2 2013 results 

were lower owing to a one-time gain on sale recognized at ADC in Q1 relating to the exit of the 

1 61.35% economic interest in UGPL compared to 65% voting interest as 3.65% of shares held outside UGPL consortium.

2 Annual Report 2012 from ABC Holdings Limited.

BANGE investment, extraordinary specific provisioning at BancABC relating to two major credits, 

and lower equity pick up on UGPL due to further impairment provisions at UBN Group level rela-

ting to final restructuring activities on non-core subsidiaries. 

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE

In 2012, ADC refined its strategy to focus more intently on the banking industry in sub-Saharan 

Africa while continuing to manage its existing private equity investments. As such, the Group 

structure was refined into the following four operating segments: Banking Operations BancABC, 

Banking Operations UBN, Private Equity Activities, and Supporting Services.

BANKING OPERATIONS BANCABC contributed EUR 8.9 million to the net profit in H1 2013 compa-

red to EUR 0 million in H1 2012. The change is attributable to the consolidation of BancABC. The 

segment BANKING OPERATIONS UBN realized a net profit of EUR 2.1 million in H1 2013 compared 

to EUR 0 million in H1 2012. The profit in this segment is attributable to the profit from ADC’s as-

sociate Union Global Partners Limited who is the controlling shareholder in Union Bank of Nigeria 

(UBN) and accounted for at-equity in ADC’s accounts.

PRIVATE EQUITY ACTIVITIES contributed a net profit of EUR 1.2 million in H1 2013 compared to a 

net loss of EUR 18.3 million in H1 2012. Main drivers in the segment include fair value adjustments 

in ADC’s private equity investment portfolio, as well as resources associated with ADC’s Mauritian 

operations.

The segment SUPPORTING SERVICES contributed EUR 3.4 million net loss in H1 2013 compared 

to EUR 1.4 million in H1 2012.  These relate primarily to the German activities of the Group, with 

the year over year increase resulting primarily from the interest expense associated with the bond 

with warrants attached issued in June 2012.

The income statements for the individual business segments are shown in detail in note 3 of the 

notes to the consolidated group financial statements.

NET ASSETS

At the end H1 2013, ADC had TOTAL ASSETS of EUR 1,316.6 million versus EUR 1,414.1 million at 

year-end 2012. The group held EUR 135.3 million in CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS compared to 

EUR 183.2 million at the year-end 2012. Of this, EUR 131.4 million was held by BancABC subgroup 

vs. EUR 181.5 million at year-end.  The reduction in cash and equivalents was largely driven by the 

decrease in deposits by a single depositor of USD 80 million in the first quarter. FINANCIAL ASSETS 

HELD FOR TRADING amounted to EUR 76.5 million at balance sheet date and mainly consisted of 

treasury bills (EUR 67.8 million), government bonds (EUR 5.1 million) and corporate bonds (EUR 

3.6 million). The position decreased in line with the asset size as investment in government bonds 

and treasury bills by subsidiaries is partly for liquidity requirements as stipulated by local central 

banks and also as a source of diversification of the assets portfolio. 

ADC held FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE in the amount of EUR 9.7 million at 30 

June 2013 compared to EUR 10.7 million at 31 December 2012. This position comprised unlisted 

debentures (EUR 7.1 million) and listed debentures (EUR 2.5 million).
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The position POSITIVE MARKET VALUE OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS came in at EUR 

4.1 million at the end of H1 2013 compared to EUR 5.7 million at the end of 2012. The H1 2013 

figure includes a EUR 2.4 million derivate related to UBN, with the balance relating to forward 

foreign exchange contracts at BancABC. 

NET LOANS AND ADVANCES amounted to EUR 875.9 million at the end of H1 2013 compared to 

EUR 886.6 million at year-end 2012. The major parts of the net loan book coming from Botswana 

with EUR 324.8 million and Zimbabwe with EUR 276.8 million. The loan book in the other country 

subsidiaries amounts to EUR 100.2 million in Zambia, EUR 91.1 million in Mozambique and EUR 

52.6 million in Tanzania. Additionally EUR 30.3 million loans and advances are allocated to the 

holding company. 

The gross loan book of EUR 920.2 million mainly comprises of corporate lending (EUR 467.0 

million), consumer lending (EUR 356.6 million), installment finance (EUR 62.8 million), mor-

tgage lending (EUR 27.4 million) and commercial and property finance (EUR 6.5 million).  

COMPOSITION OF GROSS LOAN BOOK BY MARKET SEGMENT (IN % OF TOTAL)

COMPOSITION OF NET LOAN BOOK BY COUNTRY (IN % OF TOTAL)
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Impairments amount to EUR 44.3 million at the end of H1 2013, with specific impairments of EUR 

36.3 million and collective impairments of EUR 8.0 million. The main impairments stem from the 

corporate lending (EUR 23.6 million) and installment finance (EUR 13.2 million). 

Compared to year-end 2012, impairments increased by 21% or EUR 7.6 million. The increase was 

due to increased specific impairments in Tanzania and Mozambique. 

The non-performing loan ratio (NPL) stood at 9.2% at the end of H1 2013, stable compared to 

year-end 2012. 

INVESTMENT SECURITIES of EUR 5.6 million at 30 June 2013 mainly consist of promissory notes 

held to maturity (EUR 4.4 million) and unlisted investments available for sale (EUR 0.9 million). The 

promissory notes are partial security for the loan from BIFM. The promissory notes earn a fixed 

interest of 10.25% p.a., and are redeemable on 31 March 2015. 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS of EUR 22.8 million (2012 year end: EUR 21.2 million) include EUR 18.5 

million prepayments from BancABC subgroup. 

CURRENT TAX ASSETS at 30 June 2013 came in at EUR 1.6 million, compared to EUR 3.1 million at 

31 December 2012.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES came in at EUR 52.1 million at balance sheet date compared to EUR 

54.1 million at the end of 2012. At the end of H1 2013, the position includes EUR 40.6 million rela-

ting to ADC’s investment in UGPL measured in accordance with the equity method. Furthermore, 

it includes EUR 11.4 million of ADC’s private equity investments which are measured at fair value 

through profit and loss. The position decreased by EUR 7.6 million compared to year end due to 

the sale of BANGE.  Other fair value valuations remained stable versus year end. 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT of EUR 63.3 million in H1 2013 compared to EUR 64.9 million 

at 31 December 2012 is mainly comprised of investments relating to BancABC’s operations in-

cluding land and buildings value relating primarily to the retail branch in the amount of EUR 62.9 

million.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL of EUR 61.3 million at the end of H1 2013 compared 

to EUR 70.7 million at 31 December 2012 is mainly comprised of BancABC’s banking software 

and related licenses.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS amounted to EUR 8.4 million at balance sheet date compared to EUR 8.7 

million at the end of 2012.

The group´s LIABILITIES at 30 June 2013 total to EUR 1,150.9 million compared to EUR 1,259.5 

million at the end of 2012.

DEPOSITS at balance sheet date came in at EUR 972.3 million, down 7% compared to EUR 1,041.9 

million at the end of 2012. The major parts of the depositor base coming from Botswana with EUR 

428.1 million and Zimbabwe with 201.3 million. The deposit base in the other country subsidiaries 

amounts to EUR 145.3 million in Mozambique, EUR 105.0 million in Tanzania and EUR 92.6 million 

in Zambia. EUR 863.6 million are deposits from customers, while EUR 108.7 million are deposits 

from banks. 
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The deposit base comprises of corporate customers (EUR 538.9 million), other financial institu-

tions (EUR 149.8 million), banks (EUR 108.7 million), retail customers (EUR 106.4 million), and 

public sector (EUR 68.4 million). The main part of the deposit base are term deposits (EUR 644.6 

million), while EUR 327.7 million are payable on demand.

COMPOSITION OF DEPOSIT BASE BY MARKET SEGMENT (IN % OF TOTAL)

COMPOSITION OF DEPOSIT BASE BY COUNTRY (IN % OF TOTAL)

As a result, the loan to deposit ratio stood at 90.1% at the end of H1 2013, compared to 85.1% 

at year-end 2012.

The position NEGATIVE MARKET VALUE FROM DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS of EUR 2.8 

million at balance sheet date compared to EUR 2.2 million at year end 2012.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS came in at EUR 25.2 million at 30 June 2013 compared to EUR 36.0 

million at the end of 2012 and consists of EUR 17.3 million in accruals and provisions, EUR 1.4 

million in trade and other payables and EUR 6.5 million in other current liabilities.
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CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES amounted to EUR 2.5 million at balance sheet date (EUR 2.0 million at 

31 December 2012), and deferred tax liabilities stood at EUR 12.9 million at the end of H1 2013 

(EUR 15.9 million at 31 December 2012).

BORROWED FUNDS amounted to EUR 135.2 million at the end of H1 2013 in comparison to EUR 

161.6 million at the end of 2012. The decrease is driven in large part by the conversion of the IFC 

convertible bond of EUR 9.6 million in the second quarter.

TOTAL EQUITY increased from EUR 154.6 million at the end of 2012 to EUR 165.7 million at the 

end of the H1 2013. 

The EUR 53.1 million in CAPITAL RESERVES was stable compared to year end. 

OTHER RESERVES of EUR 16.1 million at balance sheet date compared to EUR 15.4 million at the 

end of 2012. 

RETAINED EARNINGS increased to EUR 9.5 million at the end of H1 2013 from EUR 5.8 million at 

year end 2012, due to H1 profits attributable to equity holders of the parent. 

As a results, EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS amounts to EUR 87.4 million at 

30 June 2013 compared to EUR 83.0 million at the end of 2012.

The position NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST was EUR 78.3 million at the end of H1 2013 compared 

to EUR 71.6 million at the end of 2012 and includes primarily the minority interests in BancABC.

FINANCIAL POSITION

FINANCIAL AND CASH MANAGEMENT

The principles and objectives of ADC’s financial management are laid down by ADC’s Manage-

ment in Germany and are implemented by the operating subsidiaries in Africa. The main goal is to 

ensure liquidity of the operations and subsidiaries at all while limited interest expenses accruing 

to the Group. In addition, the financial management activities focus on establishing financing 

flexibility and aims to decrease the cost of capital while securing adequate funding. The Group 

treasury office of ADC’s subsidiary BancABC in Johannesburg, South Africa ensures adequate 

financial management is in place for its licensed banks in its five countries of operations. In the 

future ADC aims to use synergies between the Group treasury office of BancABC and its head 

office in Germany for example by applying best practices from BancABC’s treasury management 

processes to the whole ADC Group, and conversely by providing BancABC with access to inter-

national capital markets and ADC’s wide network of banks and other financiers. Currently, there is 

no central treasury function established which integrates BancABC. The management of financial 

risks is reported in the risk management section in more detail. ADC is currently not hedging itself 

against exchange rate or interest rate fluctuations as these currency exposures are multi-year in 

nature with uncertain payback timelines related to investment exits. 
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Further to its equity capital, ADC has following debt facility to finance its operations at the end of 

H1 2013:

 — Listed EUR 40 million bond with warrants attached at an interest rate 

of 6% with a term of 3 years (01 June 2012 until 31 May 2015).

 

In May 2013, the loan facility agreement with Trafigura Holdings Limited of EUR 4.3 million was 

repaid in full.

As of balance sheet date, ADC has no off-balance sheet financial facilities such as Asset Backed 

Securities, Factoring or Leasing.

ADC is managing its cash reserves prudently, monitoring the outflows on a weekly basis with a 

12-week rolling cash forecast process as well as a diligent underlying cash budgeting process. 

ADC is currently in the process of identifying further options to increase its financial flexibility 

as the cash and cash equivalents decreased significantly in 2012 and have been successfully 

invested in its banking operations in sub-Saharan Africa. However to ensure continuation of a 

fast growth pace and implementation of its growth strategy further financing is required. ADC 

is assessing its options to increase its liquidity position by either selling assets or increasing the 

capitalization of the Group.

The NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES for H1 2013 resulted in net cash outflows of 

EUR 58.7 million versus outflows of EUR 5.6 million in H1 2012. They are mainly due to a decrease 

in deposits at BancABC which resulted in cash outflows of EUR 106.0 million.    

NET CASH INFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES amounted to EUR 2.2 million (H1 2012: Outflows 

of EUR 26.7 million) mainly due to inflows from ADC’s sale of BANGE in May.  Finally outflows of 

EUR 6.5 million were used for the purchase of tangible and intangible assets in the period. 

NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES amounted to EUR 1.1 million compared to 

inflows of EUR 33.6 million in H1 2012. Cash outflows from financing activities relate to the repay-

ment of the EUR 4.3 million loan facility with Trafigura Holdings Ltd. 

As a result of the above, total cash outflows for the quarter ended 30 June 2013 were EUR 57.6 

million, compared to a total cash inflow of EUR 1.3 million in the previous year causing loan book 

to increase disproportionally versus deposits in the period. 

ADC’s liquidity position was further strengthened through a private placement of shares which 

closed on 30 July 2013. A strategic investor subscribed to almost 10% of ADC’s authorized capital 

(860,676 new registered shares) at EUR 9.50 per share, raising EUR 8.2 million cash proceeds for 

ADC. 

ADC is assessing further options to increase its liquidity position including sales of further non-

core investments as well as increasing the capitalization of the group by issuing further equity 

during the first half of 2014. Management believes that existing key shareholders are supportive 

to the Group’s strategy and sees a good interest in the market from potential new shareholders to 

allocate funds to sub-Saharan Africa. As such, ADC is in a secure financial position to fund its ope-

rations and the operations of its subsidiaries although further expansion into additional countries 

and core markets in sub-Saharan Africa might require additional financing. Management has so 

far not committed material financial resources to further investments. Management assesses the 

Group’s balance sheet and economic situation as very strong and has no doubt that 2013 results 

will be significantly better than 2012. Additionally Management is convinced that it will be able to 

attract additional financing to realize its future expansion plans.
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REGISTRATION OF STOCK CORPORATION (AG)

On 26 July 2013, the transformation of ADC African Development Corporation GmbH & Co. KGaA 

into a stock corporation (AG) was successfully completed with its entry into the commercial re-

gister of the Local Court of Frankfurt am Main. Trading of ADC African Development Corporation 

GmbH & Co. KGaA’s shares in the Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange ceased at same 

day after the close of trading. The inclusion, as well as the immediate resumption of trading, of 

ADC African Development Corporation AG’s shares in the Entry Standard of the Frankfurt Stock 

Exchange commenced the following business day, on 29 July 2013.

TEN PERCENT CAPITAL INCREASE FROM AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

On 30 July 2013, ADC registered a capital increase, increasing the current share capital of EUR 

8,606,764 through the partial utilization of existing authorized capital by almost 10%, issuing 

860,676 new registered shares and reaching a new share capital of EUR 9,467,440. A strategic 

investor subscribed to all the shares at EUR 9.50 per share in a private placement, raising EUR 8.2 

million for ADC. The capital increase was undertaken by cash contribution and did not exceed 10% 

of the existing share capital; subscription rights by existing shareholders have, therefore, been 

excluded pursuant to § 186 para. 3 sentence 4 German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) in order to 

utilize the authorized capital which expired on 31 July 2013.

APPOINTMENT OF NEW MANAGEMENT BOARD MEMBER

The Supervisory Board appointed Karima Ola, Chief Investment Officer of ADC, as the second 

member of the German Management Board (Vorstand) on 13 August 2013. 

APPOINTMENT OF NEW SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM supported the recommendation of the Supervisory Board to increase the number of 

Supervisory Board members from three to six. ADC is happy to announce that Arnold Ekpe, Verna 

Eggleston and Oltmann Siemens will become members of the Supervisory Board with entry of 

the increased size of the Supervisory Board in the articles of association of the company registe-

red in the commercial registry. Arnold Ekpe is former CEO of Ecobank, which is one of the most 

prominent pan-African banking groups with operations in many African countries and therefore a 

prominent member in the African banking community. Subsequent to the formal registration of 

the increased size of the Supervisory Board in the articles of association of the company in the 

commercial registry, Arnold Ekpe was appointed Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board in the 

Supervisory Board meeting after the AGM on 14 August 2013. Verna Eggleston works for Bloom-

berg Philanthropies and is very well connected in the US market which will offer ADC greater 

access to the US network. Oltmann Siemens is a former representative of the World Bank Group 

in Europe and has a very strong network among development finance institutions. Furthermore 

his election adds a German presence to the Supervisory Board.

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT OF 

 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
APPOINTMENT OF NEW GROUP AUDITOR AT AGM

The AGM appointed KPMG as group auditor for ADC. The reason for the shift from Ernst & Young 

to KPMG is to align around a single auditor for all subsidiary and investee companies from the 

2013 fiscal year, including BancABC, UBN and UGPL. A single group auditor increases the effici-

ency of the auditing process. These increased efficiencies go hand in hand with more transparent 

reporting standards and cost savings since the coordination between various auditors vanish.
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OBJECTIVES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analy-

sis, evaluation, acceptance and management of single risk or a combination of risks. Taking risk is 

core to the financial business and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in 

business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return 

and minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Most assets on the ADC Group balance sheet are assets from the banking operations in Ban-

cABC, whereas the other ADC activities make up a rather small part of the asset base. BancABC‘s 

risk system is particularly highlighted alongside ADC‘s Group Risk Management System due to 

ADC‘s majority ownership of the bank and the consolidation thereof. 

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set 

appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means 

of reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk management 

policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

BancABC Group Risk carries out risk management at BancABC, under policies approved by their 

Board of Directors. The Board approves for overall risk management as well as policies covering 

specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments 

and non-derivative financial instruments. In addition, internal audit implemented on BancABC level 

is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the control environment. The 

most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. Market 

risk includes currency risk, interest rate and price risk.

ADC’s Risk Management System (RMS) was developed to keep management and the Supervi-

sory Board up-to-date about on-going political, economic, financial, legal and operational risks in 

ADC’s group and portfolio companies as well as the wider market risks affecting sub-Saharan Af-

rica. Management ensures that risks are systematically identified, measured and managed using 

the RMS. The results of the analysis influence the Company’s strategic, financial and operational 

decision-making processes. 

RISK REPORTING

Risk owners have a responsibility to identify, verify, report and monitor risks. They have to identify 

risks at a very early stage, enumerate and evaluate them and initiate appropriate procedures to 

avoid or minimize risks. Their tasks include the identification, evaluation, communication, control 

and monitoring of risks. They must report risks to risk controllers and reconcile risks on an ongoing 

basis and generate ad hoc risk announcements. 

At group level, monthly reports analyze the top 10 risks impacting the Company, including the like-

lihood and potential severity of each risk. The report includes an analysis of each group or portfolio 

RISK REPORT    AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

company to assess internal and external events that may affect each business line and investment 

and finance managers evaluate these risks to refine a scenario analysis that is used for realistic 

up-to-date risk forecasts. The scenario analysis forms the basis of a stress test that includes five 

scenarios varying from worst to best case, which is then used to estimate the overall risk exposure 

and procedures that are best used to mitigate each risk.

RISK MEASUREMENT

Both ADC and BancABC utilize a stress-testing framework for assessing the impact of various 

shocks on earnings and capital. The stress testing tool covers sensitivity analysis with respect to 

Credit, Liquidity and Foreign Currency Risks at BancABC and foreign exchange and asset value 

stress testing on a monthly basis at the ADC level. The results of the stress tests are particularly 

important for assessing the likely impact of various shocks. Contingent measures can then be de-

signed and put in place in preparation of a case where the stress scenarios crystalize. 

The BancABC Group is in the process of testing a new Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) frame-

work, with a target rollout in 2014. The BancABC Group is also developing an Economic Capital 

Framework for the Group to be tested starting in Q2 2013 and target rollout is 2014. The Inter-

nal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) will cover Economic Capital (EC) for Credit 

and Translation Risk, Operational Risk, Market Risk (Trading), Interest Rate Risk (Banking Book), 

Business Risk and Other Risk types. The framework will cover aspects of risk based capital mea-

surement and allocation. The major objective of moving towards EC is that value creation can be 

embedded in the pricing of transactions taking into account the level of risk the Group is exposed 

to as measured by BancABC internal risk models.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS

ADC is responsible for establishing, applying and maintaining an adequate internal control system 

for its accounting process and that of its consolidated subsidiaries. It is intended to provide reaso-

nable assurances that the composition of the consolidated financial statements are in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted in the EU and that the external 

financial reporting is reliable. 

The main risk in the financial reporting process is that ADC’s group and portfolio companies’ finan-

cial statements may be subject to intentional or unintentional errors that do not provide a true and 

fair view of their assets, liabilities and overall financial position or that the publication of the results 

may be delayed, which would subsequently impact the asset, financial and earnings position of the 

Company. Deviations are considered significant if they could, individually or collectively influence 

the decisions on the basis of the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. To 

counter this risk, ADC applies a four-eye principle for the preparation of financial statements and 

accounting. In addition, professional, licensed service providers in Mauritius and Germany, which 

are subject to strict controls, are responsible for the Company’s accounting during the consolidati-

on process of the Mauritian and German holding entities. 

ADC’s internal control system has been established for a pan-African banking group and concen-

trates on the following main aspects:

a) The application of a single set of group accounting policies.  Furthermore, all con-

solidated group companies report in a similar monthly structure to ensure effective 

consolidation on a monthly basis. 
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b) The organization and control of finance and accounting: Further to the dedicated 

accounting teams in each of the BancABC subsidiaries, ADC utilizes professional, li-

censed service providers for execution of its bookkeeping activities in Mauritius and 

Germany.  These service providers work under the direct supervision of ADC finance 

managers who ensure compliance with Group rules, procedures and policies.  

c) Principles of separation of functions between departments: The control system defi-

nes which tasks are fulfilled by which unit within the Group.      

d) Assignment of tasks in the preparation of financial statements: The control system 

defines who is responsible to report which input in which form and to which deadline. 

e) Involvement of external service providers on financial reporting process: ADC ensu-

res that local rules and procedures are adhered to by engaging local service providers, 

particularly for the completion of local statutory and tax accounts. To coordinate respon-

sibilities and functions the control system clearly separate internal and external tasks.

f) Access rules in the computer system: Four eyes principles and other access rules 

such as password composition and administrator functions are defined. 

g) Functions related to accounting, which are carried out by Internal Audit: The Internal 

Audit function is currently operational on BancABC level. The Internal Audit plays a key 

role in maintaining and improving the internal control environment within the BancABC 

Group. The BancABC Group Head of Internal Audit reports directly to the BancABC 

Risk and Audit Committee of the Board. The primary function of internal audit is to give 

objective assurance to the BancABC Board that adequate management processes are 

in place to identify and monitor risks, and that effective internal controls are in place to 

manage those risks. The Internal Audit independently audits and evaluates the effec-

tiveness of the BancABC Group’s risk management, internal controls and governance 

processes. Internal audit operates under terms of reference approved by the BancABC 

Risk and Audit Committee. The terms of reference define the role and objectives, au-

thority and responsibility of the audit function. The reporting structures ensure that the 

BancABC Internal Auditor has unrestricted access to the Chairman of the Risk and Audit 

Committee of BancABC and the Group CEO of BancABC. At the outset of each financial 

year, BancABC Internal Audit carries out a risk assessment for all business units and 

subsidiaries. A comprehensive audit plan for the year that identifies specific areas of 

focus is then derived from this assessment. The audit plan is reviewed regularly and 

any changes must be approved by the BancABC Risk and Audit Committee. The areas 

of focus are confirmed with executive management before being submitted to the 

BancABC Risk and Audit Committee for approval. It is targeted to roll out internal audit 

activities to ADC Group during the coming fiscal year.  

h) Control processes related to accounting: Computer systems and guidelines ensure 

that the four eyes principle is being lived in the Group.

OPPORTUNITIES AND RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FORECAST DEVELOPMENT

The management of opportunities at ADC is part of the annual strategic review and based on busi-

ness opportunities in relation to target returns. ADC management assesses opportunities while 

ensuring that adequate capital and reserves of cash are on hand for day-to-day business needs. 

New investment decisions are made on the basis of an in-depth fundamental analysis, taking into 

account industry-specific and regional factors, with the involvement of outside industry experts. 

All ADC investments are made following a pre-defined investment process inclusive of a thorough 

verification and due diligence of the opportunity. 

ADC staff and management explore new investment opportunities, but the Articles of Association 

require Supervisory Board approval for the following: a) investment decisions above EUR 1 million, 

b) taking out loans or granting loans above EUR 1 million and c) divestments below acquisition 

cost. This approval mechanism reduces the risk that any one person or group of people will have 

undue influence on an investment decision.

ADC tracks the development of its investments and subsidiaries via Key Performance Indicators 

(KPIs) inclusive of the following: Total Revenue & Income, Total Assets, Total Equity, EBIT, EBITDA, 

Profit After Tax (PAT), Return on Assets (ROA) defined as net profit after tax over total assets, Re-

turn on Equity (ROE) defined as net profit after tax over total shareholders’ equity, Price to Earnings 

(P/E) defined as market capitalization over net profit after tax, Price to Book (P/B) defined as mar-

ket capitalization over total shareholders’ equity and share price for listed companies. Non-listed 

portfolio companies prepare monthly reports inclusive of quantitative and qualitative information 

and the management of ADC follows the operational performance of all entities via supervisory or 

control functions within the investments. 

RISK CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

MANAGEMENT OF REGULATORY CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Capital adequacy ratios are a measure of the amount of a bank’s core capital expressed as a per-

centage of its risk-weighted assets. The percent threshold varies from country to country in sub-

Saharan Africa, but a common requirement for regulators conforming to Basel Accords is 10%. 

For ADC group, regulatory capital requirements are currently those of BancABC group as ADC’s 

only fully consolidated banking investment, and are defined by the regulatory minimum ratios 

in each of BancABC’s subsidiary countries. BancABC is responsible for risk and capital manage-

ment and for complying with capital adequacy across the subgroup. Internal targets of regulatory 

capital ratios are set at least 2% above the minimum regulatory requirements as buffers in all 

subsidiaries. The anticipated adoption of ICAAP will in the long run ensure that capital is managed 

effectively within the Group. 

BancABC’s objectives when managing its capital are:

 — to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the 

banking markets where the entities within the Group operate; 



46 47GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT   ADC INTERIM REPORT 2013

 — to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that 

it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for 

other stakeholders; and

 — to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its 

business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the Group’s manage-

ment, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee and 

the relevant Central Bank Authorities. The required information is filed with the Authorities on a 

monthly basis. The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, 

creditor and market confidence and to sustain future developments of the business. 

The BancABC Group’s policies in respect of capital management and allocation are reviewed re-

gularly by the BancABC Board of Directors. There have been no material changes to the Group’s 

management of capital during the year. 

At 30 June 2013 all regulated banking operations complied with all externally imposed capital 

requirements, except for BancABC Tanzania, which has recently been recapitalized. Management 

expects the entity to stay above capital reserve requirements in the coming quarter. 

BancABC’s Group regulatory capital was calculated as at 30 June 2013 on the basis of the financial 

statements of the banking subsidiaries and amounted to BWP 1,428 million (EUR 126.9 million) 

vs. BWP 1,156.1 million (EUR 112.8 million) at year end 2012. 

The following table provides an overview of BancABC subgroup’s regulatory capital ratios as of 

the end of H1 2013. BancABC improved its capital adequacy ratio as a subgroup from 10% at year-

end 2012 to 11% in H1 2013, meeting current Basel standards.

EURk 30 JUNE 2013 31 DECEMBER 2012

Tier 1 capital 126,426 110,975 

Tier 2 capital  497 1,858

Total Capital 126,923 112,834

Total Risk Weighted 
Assets

1,131,075 1,102,856

Capital Adequacy ratio 11% 10%

CREDIT RISK 

DEFINITION

Credit risk is the risk that a borrower will default on any type of debt by failing to make payments. 

The loss may be complete or partial. Country risk is an element of credit risk relating to the risk 

of default by a borrower abroad resulting from interruptions to the international payment transfer 

system in the borrower’s country of residence (transfer risk). Country risk also refers to the risk 

that governments are unable or only partially able to meet their contractual obligations.

BancABC takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a finan-

cial loss for the Group by failing to discharge an obligation. Significant changes in the economy, 

or in the health of a particular segment that represents a concentration in the Group’s portfolio, 

could result in losses that are different from those provided for at the balance sheet date. Country 

(or Sovereign) risk is part of overall credit risk and is managed as part of the credit risk. Credit ex-

posures arise principally in loans and advances, debt securities and other bills. There is also credit 

risk in off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan commitments.

RISK STRATEGY

BancABC counters this risk through timely monitoring of business partners. Before taking on a 

new customer, the Group carries out a credit check in order to assess the creditworthiness of 

potential customers. A payment period of 21 days (2012 FY: 21 days) is normally granted for trade 

receivables. Accordingly, management believes that no risk provision beyond the impairment los-

ses already recognized is necessary.

The BancABC Board has defined and documented a credit policy for the BancABC Group, which 

forms the basis of credit decisions. This policy includes a framework of limits and delegation of 

credit approval authority, which are strictly adhered to. No one individual has the power to autho-

rize credit exposures. Each subsidiary has a credit committee, which operates within the defined 

limits set by the BancABC Board. These committees are responsible for the management of credit 

risk within their country including credit decisions, processes, legal and documentation risk and 

compliance with impairment policies. 

RISK REPORTING

The BancABC Risk team reviews subsidiary risk exposures regularly, and reports to the BancABC 

Board of Directors. The BancABC Group Risk Department regularly reviews each subsidiary’s ad-

herence to required standards.

The BancABC Executive Committee report to the BancABC Board and is responsible for approval 

of credit decisions that are above country limits, recommendations on exposure limits and impair-

ment policies. There is also a Board Credit Committee on BancABC level that approves any loans 

above the limit to be approved by the BancABC Executive Committee.

The Group has adopted standard impairment policies, which at a minimum comply with the pru-

dential guidelines of the respective countries’ central banks. Impairments are determined monthly 

at a subsidiary level and are subject to regular review by BancABC Group Risk.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks at a counterparty level, 

the Group considers three components: the probability of default by the client or counterparty on 

its contractual obligations; the current exposures to the counterparty and its likely future develop-

ment; and the likely recovery on the defaulted obligations.

These credit risk measurements, which reflect expected loss, are embedded in the BancABC 

Group’s daily operational management. The operational measurements are contrasted with im-

pairment allowances required under IAS 39, which are based on losses that have been incurred 

at the balance sheet date. 

The Group assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal rating 

tools tailored to the various categories of counterparties. They have been developed internally and 

combine statistical analysis for certain categories, as well as credit officer judgment. Clients of 

the Group are segmented into five rating classes. The Group’s rating scale, which is shown below, 

reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class. This means that, in princip-

le, exposures migrate between classes as the assessment of their probability of default changes. 

The rating tools are kept under review and upgraded as necessary. The BancABC Group regularly 

validates the performance of the rating and their predictive power with regard to default events. 

BANCABC’S INTERNAL RATING SCALE

CATEGORY DESCRIPTION

Performing The credit appears satisfactory

Special mention

The credit appears satisfactory but exhibits potential or inherence wea-
knesses which, if not attended to, may weaken the asset or prospects of 
collection in full e.g. full documentation or 30 days but less than 90 days in 
arrears

Sub-standard
The credit has defined weaknesses that may jeopardize liquidation of the 
debit i.e. the paying capacity of the borrower is in doubtful or inadequate, or 
more than 90 days but less than 180 days in arrears

Doubtful
Credit facilities with above weaknesses and has deteriorated further to the 
extent that even with the existing security, full recovery will not be possible, 
or 180 days but less than 12 months in arrears

Loss
Facilities considered impossible to collect with little or no realizable security, 
or more than 12 months in arrears

RISK LIMIT CONTROL AND MITIGATION POLICIES

The Group manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk in respect of individual coun-

terparties and groups, and to industries and countries. The Group structures the levels of credit 

risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or 

groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a 

revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. 

Limits on the level of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved by the 

BancABC Board of Directors, and reviewed regularly. Exposure to credit risk is also managed 

through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and 

capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate. Some other 

specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

1. Collateral

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional 

of these is the taking of security for funds advanced, which is common practice. The BancABC 

Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral for credit risk 

mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

 — cash collateral;

 — charges over assets financed;

 — mortgages over residential and commercial properties;

 — charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and ac-

counts receivable;

 — charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equi-

ties.

Loans and advances to corporates are generally secured. In addition, in order to minimize credit 

loss, the Group will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment indi-

cators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances. Collateral held as security for 

financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the nature of the instrument. 

Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured, with the exception of 

asset-backed securities and similar instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial ins-

truments.

2. Master netting arrangements

The BancABC Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into master netting 

arrangements with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions. 

Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and 

liabilities, as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk associated 

with favorable contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if a default 

occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis. The BancABC 

Group‘s overall exposure to credit risk on derivative instruments subject to master netting arrange-

ments can change substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each transaction subject 

to the arrangement.

3. Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as 

required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documen-

tary and commercial letters of credit - which are written undertakings by the Group on behalf of 
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a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to a stipulated amount under 

specific terms and conditions - are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to which 

they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct loan. 

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in 

the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to 

extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to a loss in an amount equal to the total unused 

commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as 

most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit 

standards. The BancABC Group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because 

longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term com-

mitments.

4. Derivatives

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative positions (that is, the difference 

between purchase and sale contracts) by both amount and term. The amount subject to credit risk 

is limited to expected future net cash inflows of instruments, which in relation to derivatives are 

only a fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express the volume of instruments out-

standing. This credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall lending limits with customers, 

together with potential exposures from market movements. Collateral or other security is not 

always obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except where the Group requires 

margin deposits from counterparties.

IMPAIRMENT POLICIES

The impairments at the end of Q1 2013 are derived from each of the five internal rating grades, ad-

justed for the provision of IAS 39. The table below shows the percentage of the BancABC Group‘s 

on-and-off balance sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated impairment for 

each of the Group‘s internal rating categories.

H1 2013 2012

CATEGORY LOANS AND  
ADVANCES (IN %) 

IMPAIRMENTS 
(IN %) 

LOANS AND  
ADVANCES  

(IN %)

IMPAIRMENTS  
(IN %)

Performing 83% 17% 85% 19%

Special mention 8% 4% 6% 5%

Sub-standard 5% 19% 3% 22%

Doubtful 1% 7% 1% 4%

Loss 3% 53% 5% 50%

100% 100% 100% 100%

IMPAIRMENTS CLASSIFICATION

Impairments are managed on an expected loss basis, and are recorded on an actual loss basis.

The internal rating tool assists management to determine whether objective evidence of impair-

ment exists under IAS 39, based on the following criteria set out by the Group:

 — delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

 — cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower;

 — breach of loan covenants or conditions;

 — initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

 — deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;

 — deterioration in the value of collateral; and

 — downgrading below “Performing” level.

 

The Group‘s policy requires the review of individual financial assets at least once a month, or more 

regularly when individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on individually assessed 

accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance-sheet date on a case-

by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment normally 

encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and the anticipated 

receipts for that individual account. Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided 

for: (i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality thresholds; and (ii) 

losses that have been incurred but have not yet been identified, by using the available historical 

experience, experienced judgment and statistical techniques.

CREDIT QUALITY

The following tables reflect broadly, stable credit quality across the majority of the Group‘s busi-

nesses. 

 
DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS AND ADVANCES BY CREDIT QUALITY:

EURk H1 2013 FY 2012

Neither past due nor impaired 752,418 782,776

Past due but not impaired 87,894 55,179

Individually impaired 79,886 85,363

Gross loans and advances 920,198 923,319

Less: Allowance for impairment - 44,331 - 36,746

Net loans and advances 875,867 886,572



52 53GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT   ADC INTERIM REPORT 2013

The total impairment of loans and advances in H1 2013 is EUR 44.3 million (FY 2012: 36.7 million) 

compared to EUR 0 million in H1 2012 for the ADC Group. 

As at 30 June 2013, the overall size of the group‘s total gross credit portfolio decreased to EUR 

920.2 million (FY 2012: EUR 923.3 million) with two countries decreasing slightly. The overall loan 

portfolio went down 0.4% since December 2012, while the composition of the book continues to 

change with retail lending accounting for 46% of the total loan book. 

MAXIMUM EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK BEFORE COLLATERAL HELD OR OTHER CREDIT ENHANCEMENTS

The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of balance sheet and off-balan-

ce sheet financial instruments, before taking into account any collateral held or other credit en-

hancements unless such credit enhancements meet offsetting requirements. For financial assets 

recognized on the balance sheet, the exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amount before 

deducting impairments. For financial guarantees granted, the maximum exposure to credit risk 

is the maximum amount that the Group would have to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For 

loan commitments and other credit related commitments that are irrevocable over the life of the 

respective facilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of committed facili-

ties. Investments in associates and listed equities have been excluded as they are regarded as 

primarily exposing the Group to market risk.

EURk H1 2013 FY 2012

Placements with other banks 55,279 156,498

Financial assets held for trading 76,530 99,832

Financial assets designated at fair value 9,673 10,701

Derivative financial assets 4,122 5,739

Loans and advances (net of impairments) 875,867 886,572

Investment securities 5,615 5,319

Prepayments and other receivables 22,824 21,213

Current tax asset 1,595 3,147

1,051,505 1,189,021

Contingent liabilities

Guarantees 68,560 59,882

Loan commitments and other credit related 
facilities

14,914 17,866

83,474 77,748

Approximately 84% (FY 2012: 80%) of the total maximum exposure derives from loans and advan-

ces in H1 2013, while 7% (FY 2012:  8%) represents financial assets held for trading.

Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure of cre-

dit risk to the Group resulting from both its loan and advances portfolio and financial assets held 

for trading based on the following:

 — 91% (FY 2012: 91%) of the gross loans and advances portfolio is 

categorized in the top two grades of the internal rating system

 — 82% (FY 2012: 85%) of the gross loans and advances portfolio is 

considered to be “neither pas due nor impaired”

 — 9% (FY 2012: 9%) of gross loans and advances are “individually 

impaired”

 — The Group continues to improve its credit selection and monitoring 

processes; and

 — Loans and advances to corporates are generally backed by collateral

RISK POSITION

The amount of capital required to cover credit risk is determined by a variety of factors including 

the size of single borrower exposures, individual ratings and the industry sector of each exposure. 

As at 30 June 2013 the risk capital requirement at BancABC amounted to USD 253.2 million (EUR 

192.8 million).

MARKET RISK

DEFINITION

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value cash flows of a 

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from 

open positions in interest rates, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general 

and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such 

as interest rate, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. 

RISK STRATEGY

Market and foreign currency exposures related to dealing positions at BancABC are housed and 

managed in the Treasury division within a framework of pre-approved dealer, currency and coun-

terparty limits. All BancABC trading positions are marked to market as required by IAS 39.

RISK REPORTING

BancABC Group risk is responsible for monitoring of limits and pricing, thereby ensuring that any 

errors or unauthorized transactions are promptly identified. The currency exposure that arises as 

a result of BancABC’s continuing expansion and cross border investment activities is managed 

through the BancABC Executive Committee and the BancABC Group Asset and Liability Commit-

tee. 
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ADC monitors market risks, inclusive of foreign exchange risk and market movements on a month-

ly basis. These reports are prepared by senior staff and presented to ADC Management and Su-

pervisory Board.

RISK POSITION

1. Foreign exchange risk

ADC uses a stress testing tool to monitor its foreign exchange risk and possible losses on its 

exposure to foreign currency, based on its portfolio of investments and includes the following 

currencies: USD, Kenyan Shilling (KES), Rwandan Franc (RWF) and South African Rand (ZAR). 

BancABC Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency 

exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. BancABC Group Risk sets limits on the 

level of exposure by currency and in aggregate for both overnight and intraday positions, which 

are monitored daily. 

BancABC carries out a scenario analysis to measure the foreign exchange risk on its foreign cur-

rency exposure. These scenarios demonstrate the effect of different potential changes. For foreign 

exchange, the effects of a 10% and 20% currency depreciation is simulated to calculate the value 

at risk position. The results show that a 20% currency deprecation would have a potential gain of 

USD 1.2 billion (EUR 903.7 million) for the bank. 

2. Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that 

the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 

BancABC takes on exposure to the effects or fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest 

rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such 

changes but may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The BancABC 

Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing interest rate and liquidity risk in 

the BancABC Group. Asset and Liability management committees have been established in each 

subsidiary and meet on a monthly basis. They operate within the prudential guidelines and policies 

established by Group ALCO. 

In order to reduce interest rate risk, the majority of BancABC Group’s lending is on a variable 

interest rate with a term of less than one year. This approach has been adopted as a result of the 

scarcity of term deposits in the region, which limits the Group’s ability to build a substantial, stable 

pool of fixed rate funding.

3. Market movement

Stress tests are carried out to estimate potential losses in special market conditions and describe 

the variation of the Group’s current positions based on a fluctuation in market condition. An IRR 

stress test at BancABC yields a value at risk of USD 0.9 million (EUR 0.7 million) or USD 4.4 million 

(EUR 3.4 million) based on a scenario of 1% and 5% IRR variation respectively. 

ADC Group holds, directly or through its associates, financial assets with a fair value of EUR 103.0 

million (FY 2012: EUR 140.4 million). The Group is therefore exposed to gains or losses related to 

the variability in the market prices of the equities held. If the fair value were to increase (decrease) 

by 10% as of the reporting date, financial assets would increase (decrease) by EUR 10.3 million 

(FY 2012: EUR 14.0 million).

ADC holds, directly or through its subsidiaries, listed equities with a fair value of EUR 9.7 million 

compared to EUR 10.7 million in December 2012 and is therefore exposed to gains or losses rela-

ted to the variability in the market prices of the equities held. 

LIQUIDITY RISK

DEFINITION

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations when they fall due as a re-

sult of customer deposits being withdrawn, cash requirements from contractual commitments, or 

other cash outflows, such as debt maturities or margin calls for derivatives. Such outflows would 

deplete available cash resources for client lending, trading activities and investments. In extreme 

circumstances, lack of liquidity could result in reductions in the consolidated statement of finan-

cial position and sales of assets, or potentially an inability to fulfill lending commitments. The risk 

that the Group will be unable to do so is inherent in all banking operations and can be affected by 

a range of institution-specific and market-wide events including, but not limited to, credit events, 

merger and acquisition activity, systemic shocks and natural disasters.

RISK STRATEGY

The ADC Group manages liquidity risks with a strict annual budgeting process. Adjustments to 

the budgets are monitored by rolling 12-week cash forecasts. Weekly cash forecasting is reported 

from single entity Directors to the CFO and monitored on a consolidated basis and reported to 

the CEO.

BancABC subgroup holds liquidity reserves in highly tradable instruments or money market place-

ments, which are immediately available if required. Liquidity is assessed by currency as well as by 

time bracket. BancABC liquidity management is dependent upon accurate cash flow projections 

and the monitoring of its future funding requirements. BancABC’s liquidity management process 

is monitored by Group Treasury and includes:

 — Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to 

ensure that requirements can be met. This includes replenishment 

of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers. The Group 

maintains an active presence in global money markets to enable this 

to happen

 — Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be 

liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash 

flow

 — Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulato-

ry requirements

 — Managing concentration and profile of debt maturities
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RISK REPORTING

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next 

day, week and month respectively as these are key periods for liquidity management. The starting 

point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial liabilities and 

the expected collection date of the financial assets.

BancABC Group Treasury also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and type of 

undrawn lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facilities and the impact of contingent 

liabilities such as standby letter of credit and guarantees.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Asset and Liability Committees to maintain a 

diversification by currency, geography, provider, product and term where possible. 

BANCABC RISK POSITION

 

Results from BancABC’s risk scenario and in the stress scenarios as at 30 June 2013 amounted to a 

stressed liquidity position of USD 253.2 million (EUR 192.8 million). The minimum liquidity surplus, 

or the required, contingency capital, of BancABC in the risk scenario measured as at 30 June 2013 

amounted to USD 172 million (EUR 131 million).

Furthermore, with regards to compliance with regulatory liquidity ratio minimums, BancABC sub-

group was in compliance in all countries as of 30 June 2013. 

The below table shows the key liquidity ratios1 by country in relation to the regulatory minimums:

REGULATORY MINIMUM ACTUAL RATIO 30 JUNE 2013

Botswana 10% 12.9%

Mozambique 100% 102.5%

Tanzania 20% 20.6%

Zambia 6% 11.2%

Zimbabwe 30% 32.3%

ADC RISK POSITION

The financial condition of the Company may be adversely impacted by an inability to borrow funds 

or sell assets to meet its obligations. ADC has an interest payment of EUR 2.4 million due on 01 

June 2014 and the payment of the principal of ADC’s bond with warrants attached (EUR 40.0 mil-

lion) is due 31 May 2015. If ADC is unable to pay back its obligations, inclusive of annual interest 

1 Liquidity ratio calculated defined as total demand liabilities / total liquid assets

payments, or maintain a liquidity ratio as defined in the terms and conditions of the bond, the 

Company may be forced to sell assets at a discount to their fair value to satisfy covenants in the 

bond purchase agreement. 

OPERATIONAL RISK

DEFINITION

ADC defines Operational risk as the risk of unexpected loss from human error, information tech-

nology failure, weakness in processes and / or management as well as external events. Legal and 

regulatory risks are also included in this definition.

RISK REPORTING

Monthly reports analyze the top 10 risks impacting the Group, including the likelihood and poten-

tial severity of each risk. The report includes an analysis of each group or portfolio company to 

assess internal and external events that may affect each business line.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Under the new operational risk management requirements at BancABC, all heads are responsible 

for operational risk management in their respective units and will appoint risk champions that will 

ensure that operational losses are recorded, rated, monitored and tracked until they are resolved.

BancABC has fully implemented an Operational risk management system aCCelerate Analyser by 

Chase Cooper that went live in February 2013. The system will help BancABC subsidiaries and the 

Group to monitor operational risks more closely and will also help in the collection of loss data for 

calibrating Economic Capital Models for the Group. The BancABC internal risk department will be 

carrying out Business Risk Reviews for all operations in 2013.

RISK POSITION 

1. Personnel Risk

ADC and BancABC’s operational management is dependent on a number of key individuals. The 

Company’s core team has sectoral and geographical expertise and the networks and contacts to 

successfully grow the Company. Performance related compensation packages at ADC minimize 

turnover and a strong and active Supervisory Board ensures continuity and leadership should a 

member of the Management team leave the company for any reason.

Furthermore, BancABC has a shortage of tellers and banking staff in some operational countries.

2. Regulatory and Legal Risks

There is a risk that the regulatory environment in any one of ADC’s group or portfolio countries 

could suddenly changes in an unpredictable manner. Changes may result from new laws, court 
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decisions, administrative decisions or regulations, particularly in the area of labor law. It is possible 

that a government may violate international statutes or agreements, resulting in the loss of asso-

ciated companies, financial difficulties or bankruptcy of the Company. ADC or one of its portfolio 

companies may face difficulties to enforce contracts due to weaker judicial enforcement and 

rule of law. ADC may not comply with corporate governance in the capital markets environment 

or on regulatory requirements in banking and the insurance industry. Moreover, the operations 

and investments of ADC in the banking and insurance sectors are vulnerable to national and 

international changes in the capital requirements that are set by the central banks and / or by 

new international standards such as Basel III. ADC’s banking investments risk losing their license 

if capital requirements change suddenly and additional capital is not available. In H1 2013, ADC 

continued discussions with the Botswana Stock Exchange (BSE) regarding mandatory takeover 

requirements of a 35%-owned stock listed company in Botswana, such as BancABC. In May 2013, 

ADC announced its intention to undertake the mandatory takeover offer to minority shareholders 

of BancABC and will offer a cash payment equal to USD 0.60 per share on the Zimbabwe Stock 

Exchange at the exchange rate equivalent of BWP 5.05 on the BSE. At the end of H1 2013, dis-

cussions were still on-going with the BSE regarding the most efficient way forward to complete 

the mandatory offer.

3. Information Technology

IT service delivery has significantly improved over the first half of the year and disaster recovery 

sites are now functional in most countries, with the exception of Tanzania. There is a need to 

ensure that testing is done at least twice yearly and recovery times are aligned with business 

requirements. 

4. Political Risk

Insufficient governance structures in frontier markets bear considerable risk of unforeseeable 

changes in the political climate, which could affect ADC’s group or portfolio companies and, in 

extreme cases, lead to partial loss or total expropriation of assets. Where possible, ADC mitigates 

its exposure to political risk with political insurance policies underwritten by the Multilateral Invest-

ment Guarantee Agency (MIGA), a subsidiary of the World Bank. RSwitch, RHEAL and BancABC 

in Botswana are insured against the following: Exchange controls, Foreign Exchange transfer risk, 

war and civil disturbance and expropriation of assets (incl. creeping). The policy guarantees a 90% 

repayment of the invested capital inclusive of retained earnings. 

5. External Risks

Many resource rich countries in sub-Saharan Africa are affected by fluctuating global commodity 

prices. ADC seeks to diversify its banking operations and private equity portfolio geographically 

and base its investment decisions on the strong fundamentals of the underlying assets to reduce 

external macroeconomic influences.

RISK INTERDEPENDENCIES

Political and market risks are interdependent and often unpredictable. While ADC and its group or 

portfolio companies make every effort to identify, assess, aggregate, respond and monitor identi-

fied risks, it is possible that one or more risks could rapidly escalate without prior warning. ADC’s 

on-the-ground presence and active management approach reduces the likelihood of unforeseen 

events, but two or more risks occurring spontaneously and without warning could have negative 

repercussions. An example of such a situation would be an unexpected personnel loss combined 

with a sudden change in market environment due to a global economic recession, which would 

affect the Company and its investments in the short and medium term. If the market environ-

ment suddenly changes, the Group could also be affected by a changing interest rate or foreign 

exchange rates.

SUMMARY

The management of opportunities and risks is at the forefront of the strategic planning and ope-

rational models at ADC and BancABC. Risk measurement and reporting will strengthen as the 

Group continues to consolidate its operational entities in 2013 as the first full financial year. Fur-

thermore, BancABC Group and all of its subsidiaries will comply with Basel II by 01 January 2014, 

as is required by central banks in all of its subsidiary countries. 



60 61GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT   ADC INTERIM REPORT 2013

ADC began to transform its structure to form a pan-African Merchant Bank in 2012 
by consolidating BancABC onto its balance sheet and by continuing to build its 
local presence to facilitate advisory services and pipeline development. ADC has 
a unique ability to combine its African-based technology know-how, investment 
& advisory expertise, execution ability and large banking balance sheet to build a 
Merchant Banking platform that have a significantly positive impact on its net asset 
value in the next two years and provides the opportunity to realize synergies bet-
ween the business segments.

ADC is separated in two clearly defined departments that are coordinated from Germany by ADC’s 

CEO, Dirk Harbecke and supported by a banking headquarters in Johannesburg and an advisory & 

investment business headquartered in Mauritius. ADC‘s staff will provide a wide range of banking 

and investment advisory services, while the main focus will be on expanding a banking business 

in sub-Saharan Africa together with ADC’s majority-owned retail and corporate banking entity, 

BancABC.

1. BANKING OPERATIONS PLATFORM 

ADC’s banking strategy focuses on expanding operations into additional sub-Saharan countries 

and core markets by 2015 and optimizing performance in current operational countries (Botswana, 

Mozambique, Tanzania, Zambia, Zimbabwe). In order to fully integrate BancABC’s operations, ADC 

will amalgamate and enhance the management structures so that the banking operations will ope-

rate seamlessly within ADC’s wider Merchant Banking Group. The ADC / BancABC Management 

team will leverage its banking network to generate further investment and advisory opportunities 

across industries. This provides an opportunity for ADC to deepen its banking relationships while 

simultaneously providing additional sources of finance through co-investments or debt- and struc-

tured finance opportunities.

CORPORATE FINANCE

The growth of BancABC from a Tier 2 bank into a Tier 1 bank is central to ADC’s Merchant Banking 

strategy by increasing the minimum capitalization of each subsidiary in order to capture the small, 

but lucrative corporate lending market that requires a high level of capitalization to issue big ticket 

loans. This has the dual advantage of supporting an advisory and investment banking arm as big 

borrowers seek support in structuring deals, raising bonds and placing rights issues. 

RETAIL SECTOR

At the end of 2010, BancABC began to build its retail banking infrastructure, expanding its branch 

network into all 5 subsidiary countries with the appropriate systems to broaden its client base and 

profit from the increasingly important retail banking sector. 

OUTLOOK & OPPORTUNITIES ADC’s entry into Nigeria in 2011 reflects the prediction that much of the USD 100 billion growth to 

20201 will be in the retail sector as the majority of the country’s sophisticated banking sector cur-

rently focuses on corporate and high-income customers, neglecting the majority of the population 

who has limited access to financial services. 

CONSUMER FINANCE 

ADC aims to invest in the consumer finance sector in other countries in sub-Saharan Africa and 

market existing state-of-the-art IT solutions to microfinance institutions (MFIs) developed by iVeri, 

ADC’s payments solutions portfolio company. iVeri’s microfinance product, MicroBank+, is a so-

phisticated operating system for MFIs that require flexible IT systems that manage basic banking 

functionality for both fixed branches and mobile infrastructure.

2. PRIVATE EQUITY & ADVISORY BUSINESS 

ADC will collaborate with local and regional partners that are well suited to manage its PE invest-

ments as well as being a source of and valuable asset for advisory deals. A country satellite, such 

as Brainworks, is a business built on the back of an existing asset with a clear business model and 

strong and proven relationships, both locally and with ADC. 

RESULTS

ADC’s Management and Supervisory Board see significant potential to accelerate returns through 

expansion of its core banking activities, advisory income and selected dedicated investment op-

portunities by leveraging its banking platform and network. Based on the business plan, the Group 

will focus on growth with an average cost-income ratio of 50-55% in its banking operations by 

2015 to control costs and a target Return on Equity (ROE) of up to 25%. ADC aims for a strong 

growth of its asset base, a consolidated group net profit of EUR 20.0 million by the end of 2013 

and further growth of both assets and net profit in 2014. Main premise to the forecasts is a fa-

vorable development of the economic conditions in its countries of operations, especially in the 

countries where it operates under the BancABC brand. 

Nevertheless, forecasts will continue to be heavily influenced by developments in the Euro and 

sovereign debt crisis as well as by their impact on the capital markets as well as the growth 

prospects of Africa heavily influenced by natural resources price development. Therefore, any 

forecasts might deviate from the expectations of future development

Frankfurt/Main, 30 August 2013

Dirk Harbecke
Chairman of the Management Board (Vorstandsvorsitzender)

1 Economist Intelligence Unit, Banking sub-Saharan Africa to 2020, 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
(UNAUDITED)

ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AG (AKA ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION GMBH & CO.KGAA)

IN EURk NOTES
01.01.2013 -

30.06.2013
01.01.2012 - 

30.06.2012
01.04.2013 - 

30.06.2013
01.04.2012 - 

30.06.2012

Interest and similar income 4.1. 92,331 154 50,753 94

Interest and similar expense 4.2. -49,434 -203 -28,359 -203

Net interest income 42,897 -49 22,394 -109

Provision for credit losses 4.3. -8,829 0 -7,167 0

Net interest income after provision 
for credit losses 34,068 -49 15,226 -109

Net fee and commission income 4.4. 18,203 0 8,911 0

Net gains (losses) on financial 
instruments designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

4.5. 1,482 -15,228 -201 -7,999

Net trading income 4.6. 9,433 0 4,672 0

Net income (loss) from equity method 
investments

4.7. 1,792 0 278 0

Other non-interest income 4.8. 4,263 1,880 2,416 1,095

Total Operating Income 69,241 -13,397 31,303 -7,013

Operating expenses -57,308 -6,318 -30,032 -2,516

Result before tax 11,934 -19,715 1,272 -9,529

Income tax expense -4,153 0 -1,205 28

Result for the period 7,781 -19,715 67 -9,501

attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 3,754 -19,632 -612 -9,467

Non-controlling interests 4,027 -82 679 -34

Average number of shares (basic/
diluted)

8,606,764 8,379,763 8,606,764 8,379,763

8,606,764 8,379,763 8,606,764 8,379,763

Earnings per share (basic/diluted)

basic, for profit for the year attributa-
ble to ordinary equity holders of the 
parent

0.44 -2.34 -0.07 -1.13

diluted, for the year attributable to 
ordinary equity holders of the parent

0.44 -2.34 -0.07 -1.13

Note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
(UNAUDITED)

ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AG (AKA ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION GMBH & CO.KGAA)

IN EURk
  01.01.2013 - 

31.06.2013
  01.01.2012 - 

31.06.2012
01.04.2013 - 

30.06.2013
  01.04.2012 - 

31.06.2012

Result for the period 7,781 -19,715 67 -9,501

Net (loss)/gain on available-for-sale financial 
assets

-18 0 -11 0

Exchange differences on translating foreign 
operatings

1,331 154 -2,988 199

Share of reserves in associated companies 2,849 0 1,100 0

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the 
period, net of tax

4,162 154 -1,899 199

Total comprehensive income for the period, 
net of tax

11,943 -19,561 -1,832 -9,302

     

Attributable to:     

Equity holders of the parent 6,905 -19,240 -1,564 -9,081

Non-controlling interests 5,038 -321 -268 -221

11,943 -19,561 -1,832 -9,302

 Note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 30 JUNE 2013 
(UNAUDITED)   

ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AG (AKA ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION GMBH & CO.KGAA)

IN EURk

ASSETS NOTES 30 JUNE 2013
 

31 DEC 2012

Cash and short term funds 5.1.  135,259  183,210 

Other financial assets held for 
trading

5.2.  76,530  99,832 

Financial assets designated at fair 
value

5.3.  9,673  10,701 

Derivative financial instruments 5.10.  4,122  5,739 

Loans and advances 5.4.  875,867  886,572 

Investment securities 5.5.  5,615  5,319 

Other current assets 5.6.  22,824  21,213 

Current tax assets 5.6.  1,595  3,147 

Investment in associates 5.7.  52,054  54,095 

Property, plant and equipment  63,344  64,905 

Other intangible assets and good-
will

 61,326  70,694 

Deferred tax assets  8,380  8,650 

  

Total assets 1,316,587  1,414,076 

IN EURk

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES NOTES 31 JUNE 2013 31 DEC 2012

Deposits 5.8.  972,326  1,041,891 

Derivative financial instruments 5.10.  2,792  2,208 

Creditors and accruals  25,193  35,954 

Current tax liabilities  2,547  2,018 

Deferred tax liabilty  12,860  15,871 

Borrowed funds 5.9.  135,189  161,581 

Total liabilities  1,150,907    1,259,523  

Share Capital 5.11.  8,607  8,607 

Capital Reserve  53,137  53,137 

Other reserves 5.11.  16,121  15,447 

Retained Earnings  9,526  5,773 

Equity attributable to ordi-
nary shareholders  87,392    82,964  

Non-controlling interests   78,288   71,589  

Total equity  165,680   154,553  

Total equity and liabilities  1,316,587   1,414,076  

Note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
(UNAUDITED)

ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AG (AKA ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION GMBH & CO.KGAA)

IN EURk
SHARE

CAPITAL
CAPITAL
RESERVE

RETAINED
EARNINGS

OTHER
RESERVES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE 
TO EQUITY HOLDERS 

OF THE PARENT

NON-
CONTROLLING

INTERESTS
TOTAL

EQUITY

Note 5.11. Note 5.11.

At 1 January 2012 8,411 50,030 19,701 11,286 89,428 -1,103 88,325

Exchange differences 0 0 0 393 393 -239 154

Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 393 393 -239 154

Result of the period 0 0 -19,632 0 -19,632 -82 -19,714

Total comprehensive income 0 0 -19,632 393 -19,239 -321 -19,560

Acquisition of treasury stock 0 0 0 -2,021 -2,021 0 -2,021

Acquisition of non-controlling interests 0 0 0 -1,425 -1,425 1,425 0

Transaction costs (net of tax) 0 -20 0 0 -20 0 -20

Called capital contribution 196 1,279 0 0 1,475 0 1,475

Other equity movements 0 1,862 0 0 1,862 0 1,862

At 30 June 2012 8,607 53,151 69 8,233 70,060 1 70,061

At 1 January 2013 8,607 53,137 5,773 15,447 82,964 71,589 154,553

Exchange differences 0 0 0 320 320 1,011 1,331

Share of reserves in associated companies 0 0 0 2,849 2,849 0 2,849

Movement in available-for-sale financial assets 0 0 0 -18 -18 0 -18

Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 3,151 3,151 1,011 4,162

Result for the period 0 0 3,754 0 3,754 4,027 7,781

Total comprehensive income 0 0 3,754 3,151 6,905 5,038 11,943

other equity movements 0 0 0 -2,477 -2,477 2,477 0

dividends of subsidiaries 0 0 0 0 0 -816 -816

At 30 June 2013 8,607 53,137 9,526 16,121 87,392 78,288 165,680

Note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
(UNAUDITED)

ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AG (AKA ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION GMBH & CO.KGAA)

IN EURk NOTES 2013 2012

Result for the period 7.781 -19.715

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

- Income taxes paid (-)/ received (+) -7.690 0

+ Dividends received 87 350

+ Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 3.385 84

+ Amortization and impairment of intangible assets 5.491 115

+/(-)
Net (gains)/losses on financial instruments designated at fair 
value through profit or loss 4.5. -1.482 15.228

+ Net (gains)/losses on derivative financial instruments 1.328 0

+/(-) Gain/(Loss) from associates 4.7. -1.792 0

+/(-) Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 33 0

+/(-) Impairment of loans and advances 4.3. 8.829 0

+/(-) Increase (-)/ decrease (+) in operating assets 31.287 -247

+/(-) Increase (+)/ decrease (-) in operating liabilities -105.963 -1.385

= Net cash flows from operating activities -58.704 -5.570

- Purchase of intangible assets -3.243 -431

- Purchase of property, plant and equipment -3.237 -64

- Purchase of associates -431 -26.164

-
Proceeds from sale of associates measured at fair value through 
profit or loss 9.000 0

+ Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 65 0

= Net cash flows from/used in investing activities 2.154 -26.659

- Transaction costs of issue of shares 0 -20

+ Proceeds from capital increase 0 495

+ Proceeds from convertible bond 0 935

+ Proceeds from bond with warrants (2012) 0 38.189

- Acquisition of treasury stock 0 -2.021

+ Proceeds from loans and other debentures 3.300 0

- Repayments of loans and other debentures -4.300 -4.000

= Net cash flows from/used in financing activities -1.000 33.578

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -57.550 1.349

+ Net foreign exchange difference 9.599 420

+ Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 5.1. 183,210 43,278

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 5.1. 135.259 45.047

Operational cash flows from interest and dividends

Interest paid 48.231 49

Interest received 92.331 154

Dividend received 87 0

Note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AG (AKA ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION GMBH & 
CO.KGAA), FRANKFURT, (INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - IFRS) AS OF 30 JUNE 2013

(UNAUDITED)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

ADC is a German listed pan-African banking group focused on frontier markets in Sub-Saharan 

Africa. 

The transformation of ADC African Development Corporation GmbH & Co. KGaA, ISIN DE000A-

1E8NW9, into a stock corporation (AG) was successfully completed on 26 July 2013 with its entry 

into the commercial register of the Local Court of Frankfurt am Main. The unchanged Supervisory 

Board under the chairmanship of Alastair Newton will resume its work in the newly formed stock 

corporation. The existing Managing Director of the General Partner, Dirk Harbecke, has been ap-

pointed to the Management Board (Vorstand) of ADC African Development Corporation AG.

Trading of ADC African Development Corporation GmbH & Co. KGaA’s shares in the Prime Stan-

dard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange ceased on 26 July 2013 after the close of trading. The in-

clusion as well as the immediate resumption of trading of ADC African Development Corporation 

AG’s shares in the Entry Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange will commence on Monday, 

29 July 2013.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in euro (EUR). All figures including 

the prior-year figures are stated in thousands of euro (EUR k) in these notes to the consolidated 

financial statements. 

Reclassifications and aggregations of prior-year’s figures are described in note 2.2.

Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the 

actual figures.

The income statement has been prepared using the nature of expense method. The Company’s 

fiscal year is the calendar year. 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The interim consolidated financial statements of ADC African Development Corporation AG as of 

the reporting date 30 June 2013 were prepared in accordance with the International Financial Re-
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porting Standards (IFRSs), International Accounting Standards (IAS) – as adopted by the European 

Commission for application in the EU –, the Interpretations of the International Financial Reporting 

Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) that have 

binding effect for the period for which the financial statements were prepared. The interim con-

solidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 (Interim Financial 

Reporting).

ADC’s condensed consolidated interim financial statements are unaudited and include supple-

mentary disclosures on segment information, income statement, balance sheet and other finan-

cial information. They should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial state-

ments of ADC for 2012, for which the same accounting policies have been applied.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions for certain categories of assets and liabilities. Areas where this is required include 

the fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities, the reclassification of financial assets, the 

impairment of loans and provision for off-balance-sheet positions, the impairment of other financi-

al assets and non-financial assets, the recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets, and 

the accounting for legal and regulatory contingencies and uncertain tax positions. These estimates 

and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 

assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date, and the reported amounts of revenue and ex-

penses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from management’s estimates and 

the results reported should not be regarded as necessarily indicative of results that may expected 

for the entire year.

2.2 RECLASSIFICATIONS AND AGGREGATIONS OF COMPARATIVES

INCOME STATEMENT

Comparative figures for the period 1 January to 30 June 2012 for the following income statement 

items were summarized:

Total revenue and other operating income (EUR 1,880) is shown under the item other non-interest 

income.

Cost of sales (EUR 927k), portfolio professional fees (EUR 516k), personnel expenses (EUR 333k), 

other operating expenses (EUR 4,342k) and depreciation and amortization of intangible and tangi-

ble assets (EUR 199k) are summarized under operating expenses (EUR 6,318k).

2.3 IMPACT ON CHANGES OF ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The following are those accounting pronouncements which are relevant to the Group and which 

have been adopted in the first half of 2013 in the preparation of these condensed consolidated 

interim financial statements.

IAS 1

On January 1, 2013, the Group adopted the amendments to IAS 1, “Presentation of Financial 

Statements” which require companies to group together items within other comprehensive in-

come (“OCI”) that may be reclassified to the statement of income. The amendments also reaf-

firm existing requirements that items in the OCI and profit or loss should be presented as either 

a single statement or two separate statements. The adoption of the amendments did not have 

a material impact on presentation of other comprehensive income in the Group’s consolidated 

financial statements.

IFRS 13

On January 1, 2013, the Group adopted, IFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement” which establishes a 

single source of guidance for fair value measurement under IFRS. IFRS 13 provides a revised de-

finition of fair value and guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or 

permitted by other standards within IFRS and introduces more comprehensive disclosure require-

ments on fair value measurement. There was no impact on the consolidated financial statements 

from the adoption of the measurements requirements of IFRS 13. The Group has provided the 

disclosures as required by IFRS 13 in the note “Financial instruments disclosures” of this Interim 

Report.

IFRS 7

In December 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 7, “Disclosures – Offsetting Financial 

Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“IFRS 7R”) requiring extended disclosures to allow investors to 

better compare financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS or U.S. GAAP. The amend-

ments were effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 but also interim pe-

riods thereafter. The adoption of the amendments in the first quarter 2013 did not have a material 

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

IMPROVEMENTS TO IFRS 2009-2011 CYCLE

In May 2012, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS, which resulted from the IASB’s annual impro-

vement project. They comprise amendments that result in accounting changes for presentation, 

recognition or measurement purposes as well as terminology or editorial amendments related to 

a variety of individual IFRS standards. The adoption of the amendments did not have a material 

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

IAS 32, “Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”, IFRS 9 and IFRS 9R, “Financial Inst-

ruments” will be relevant to the Group but were not effective as of June 30, 2013 and therefore 

have not been applied in preparing these financial statements.

IAS 36, “Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendment to IAS 36)”, 

addresses the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that 
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amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments will become effective for 

the Group on January 1, 2014.

IAS 39, “Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments to IAS 39)”, 

allows hedge accounting to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been designated 

as a hedging instrument, is novated to effect clearing with a central counterparty as a result of 

laws or regulation, if specific conditions are met. The amendments will become effective for the 

Group on January 1, 2014.

IFRS 12, “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (including amendments to the transition 

guidance for IFRS 10-12 issued in June 2012)”, which requires annual disclosures of the nature, 

associated risks, and financial effects of interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates 

and unconsolidated structured entities became effective for the Group on January 1, 2013 but will 

only be applied in the 2013 year-end financial statements.

IFRIC 21, “Levies”, an interpretation of IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets”, clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy only when the activity that triggers 

payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. The interpretation will become effective 

for the Group on January 1, 2014.

While approved by the IASB, the above standards and in terpretation – except for I AS 32, “Off-

setting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” and IFRS 12, “Disclosure of Interests in Other 

Entities” – have yet to be endorsed by the EU.

The Group is currently evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of the amendment to IAS 

32, amendment to IAS 39, IFRS 9, IFRS 9R and IFRIC 21 will have on its consolidated financial 

statements. The adoption of IFRS 12 and the amendment to IAS 36 will only have a disclosure 

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3. SEGMENT REPORTING

ADC’s focus is on building a pan-African Merchant Banking Group through regional banking plat-

forms in order to benefit from the rapidly expanding retail, corporate and consumer banking opera-

tions on the continent. ADC will continue to manage a private equity business under the Merchant 

Banking Platform to profit from existing and future proprietary investments. As such, the group 

structure has been refined into four segments: 

1. Banking Operations BancABC

The first time consolidation of BancABC allows ADC to achieve full integration of the Group’s core 

banking operations while accelerating the creation of a cross-border platform that will profit from 

regional trade and investment. BancABC has corporate and retail operations in Botswana, Mozam-

bique, Tanzania, Zambia and Zimbabwe. 

2. Banking Operations UBN

ADC, as part of a consortium of international investors, the Union Global Partners Limited (UGPL), 

has completed its investment in Union Bank of Nigeria plc (“UBN”) together with partners with a 

wealth of experience including Nigerian private equity fund African Capital Alliance (ACA), global 

financial services private equity firm Corsair Capital, the Dutch development bank FMO, interna-

tional business group Richard Chandler Corporation and global private equity investor Standard 

Chartered Private Equity. In alignment with ADC’s strategy to become a pan-African banking group 

and due to ADC’s active role in the UGPL consortium, UBN is classified as a strategic associate 

that will be held long-term by ADC. 

3. Private Equity Activities (formerly: Banking and Payment Services and 

Insurance)

The former segments “Banking”, “Payment Solutions” and “Insurance” were merged into ADC’s 

private equity unit in order to streamline and optimize the existing portfolio of investments 

(RSwitch, RHEAL, iVeri). 

4. Supporting services

The Group’s support services comprise areas of activity such as identifying investment opportu-

nities, monitoring the financial position and performance of Group companies and portfolio com-

panies, and providing them with professional support. In addition, strategic portfolio structuring is 

pursued, active risk management coordinated, capital-raising measures implemented, and relati-

onships with investors maintained.

No operating segments have been combined to form the above reportable operating segments.

Transactions between the business segments are carried out at arm’s length. The revenue from 

external parties reported to the Group Executive Committee is measured in a manner consistent 

with that in the consolidated income statement.

There were no banking revenues derived from transactions with a single external customer that 

amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenues.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of 

making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance 

is evaluated based on operating profit or loss, which may be measured with certain deviations 

from the consolidated financial statements. 
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BANKING OPERA-
TIONS PRIVATE 

EQUITY 
ACTIVI-

TIES

SUP-
PORTING 
SERVICES

CONSOLI-
DATION TOTAL2013 

EURk
BancABC

UNION 
BANK  

NIGERIA

Interest and similar income 92,319 0 210 94 -292 92,331

Interest and similar expense -47,638 0 -291 -1,796 290 -49,434

Net interest income 44,681 0 -81 -1,702 -2 42,897

Provision for credit losses -8,829 0 0 0 0 -8,829

Net interest income after provision 
for credit losses

35,852 0 -81 -1,702 -2 34,068

Net fee and commission income 18,203 0 0 0 0 18,203

Net gains (losses) on financial 
instrument designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

85 0 1,397 0 0 1,482

Net trading income 9,433 0 0 0 0 9,433

Net income (loss) from equity me-
thod investments

-263 2,054 0 0 0 1,792

Other non-interest income 2,549 0 2,798 449 -1,532 4,263

Total operating income 65,859 2,054 4,114 -1,253 -1,534 69,241

Operating expenses -52,851 0 -2,940 -2,188 671 -57,308

Result before tax 13,007 2,054 1,174 -3,441 -863 11,934

Income tax -4,143 0 0 0 -10 -4,153

Result for the period 8,864 2,054 1,174 -3,441 -873 7,781

Cash and short term funds 131,416 0 1,907 1,936 0 135,259

Financial assets held for trading 76,530 0 0 0 0 76,530

Financial assets designated at fair 
value

17,487 0 0 0 -7,814 9,673

Derivative financial instruments 1,679 0 2,443 0 0 4,122

Loans and advances 875,867 0 0 0 0 875,867

Investment securities 5,615 0 0 0 0 5,615

Other current assets 20,932 0 1,853 44 -5 22,824

Current tax assets 1,588 0 1 6 0 1,595

Investment in associates 1,283 39,348 11,422 0 0 52,054

Property, plant and equipment 62,919 0 405 19 0 63,344

Other intangible assets and goodwill 60,000 0 1,560 41 -276 61,326

Deferred tax assets 7,963 0 417 0 0 8,380

Total assets 1,263,279 39,348 20,008 2,046 -8,095 1,316,587

Deposits 972,326 0 0 0 0 972,326

Derivative financial instruments 2,792 0 0 0 0 2,792

Creditors and accruals 23,256 0 900 1,038 0 25,193

Current tax liabilities 2,501 0 -20 66 0 2,547

Deferred tax liability 12,860 0 0 0 0 12,860

Borrowed funds 97,754 0 0 37,435 0 135,189

Segment liabilities 1,111,489 0 880 38,539 0 1,150,907

BANKING OPERATIONS PRIVATE 
EQUITY AC-

TIVITIES

SUP-
PORTING 
SERVICES

CONSOLI-
DATION TOTAL2012 

EURk
BancABC

UNION 
BANK  

NIGERIA

Interest and similar income 0 0 0 154 0 154

Interest and similar expense 0 0 0 -203 0 -203

Net interest income 0 0 0 -49 0 -49

Provision for credit losses 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net interest income after provision 
for credit losses

0 0 0 -49 0 -49

Net gains (losses) on financial instru-
ments 

0 0 -15,228 0 0 -15,228

Other non-interest income 0 0 1,880 0 0 1,880

Total Operating Income 0 0 -13,348 -49 0 -13,397

Operating expenses 0 0 -4,935 -1,382 0 -6,317

Net income from operations 0 0 -18,283 -1,431 0 -19,715

Result before tax 0 0 -18,283 -1,431 0 -19,715

Income tax 0 0 0 0 0 0

Result for the period 0 0 -18,283 -1,431 0 -19,715

Cash and short term funds 0 23,185 21,862 0 45,047

Derivative financial instruments 0 0 4,640 0 0 4,640

Other current assets 0 0 3,436 0 0 3,436

Current tax assets 0 0 58 23 0 81

Investment in associates 0 23,851 36,309 0 0 60,160

Property, plant and equipment 0 0 532 0 0 532

Other intangible assets and goodwill 0 0 1,595 0 0 1,595

Deferred tax assets 0 0 448 0 0 448

Total assets 0 23,851 70,203 21,885 0 115,939

Creditors and accruals 0 0 9,330 214 0 9,544

Borrowed funds 0 0 36,326 0 0 36,326

Shares of general partner 0 0 0 5 0 5

Total liabilities 0 0 45,656 219 0 45,875
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NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES

EURk 2013 2012

Botswana 15,911 0

Mozambique 3,686 0

Tanzania -4,125 0

Zimbabwe 16,358 0

Zambia 4,019 0

Other -1,781 -49

Total 34,068 -49

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

EURk 2013 2012

Botswana, Mozambique, Tanzania, Zimbabwe, Zambia 122,643 133,493

Rwanda 1,200 1,238

Mauritius 3 4

Germany 61 77

Total 123,907 134,812

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of other intangible assets without goodwill and pro-

perty, plant and equipment.

4. NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

4.1 INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

EURk 2013 2012

Cash and short-term funds 10,390 154

Investment securities and dated financial instruments 4,623 0

Loans and advances at amortized cost 77,319 0

92,331 154

4.2 INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSE

EURk 2013 2012

Deposits -42,515 -203

Borrowed funds -6,919 0

-49,434 -203

4.3 PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES

EURk 2013 2012

Specific impairments -8,801 0

Portfolio impairments -506 0

Total impairment charge (note 5.4) -9,307 0

Recoveries of loans and advances previously written off 478 0

-8,829 0

EURk 2013 2012

Loans and advances

Mortgage lending -156 0

Instalment finance -7,036 0

Corporate lending -429 0

Commercial and property finance 104 0

consumer-lending -1,790 0

-9,307 0

4.4 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

EURk 2013 2012

Net fee income on loans and advances 9,949 0

Net fee income from trust and fiduciary activities 815 0

Cash transaction fees 5,339 0

Other fee income 2,099 0

18,203 0
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4.5 NET GAINS (LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE 

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

EURk 2013 2012

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,482 -15,228

Net gains (losses) on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss include 

net gains from changes in fair value of shares in associates classified as “assets at fair value 

through profit or loss” (IAS 39) in accordance with the option provided for in IAS 28.1 in the 

amount of EUR 1,397k (2012: net loss of -15,228k) and gains of financial instruments designated 

at fair value in the amount of EUR 85k (2012: EUR nil).

4.6 NET TRADING INCOME

EURk 2013 2012

Net (losses)/gains on derivative financial instruments -1,328 0

Held-for-trading investments 2,621 0

Foreign exchange 8,139 0

9,433 0

4.7 NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS

The following are the components of the net income (loss) from all equity method instruments.

EURk 2013 2012

Pro-rata share of investees‘ net income (loss) 1,792 0

4.8 OTHER NON-INTEREST INCOME

EURk 2013 2012

Electronic payment services 1,475 641

Dividend income:

unlisted shares - fair value through profit or loss 87 0

Rental and other income 1,722 0

(loss)/profit on disposal of property and equipment 34 0

non-trading foreign exchange 642 0

other non-interest income 303 1,239

4,263 1,880

4.9 OPERATING EXPENSES

EURk 2013 2012

Administrative expenses -11,769 -836

Property lease rentals -3,919 -59

Cost of materials -4,374 -1,443

Staff costs -22,239 -333

Depreciation and amortisation -8,876 -199

Activity and liability remuneration of personally liable partner (note 7)* 0 -1,051

Marketing -2,237 -78

Travel expenses -1,613 -114

Sundry other expenses -2,281 -2,205

-57,308 -6,318

*Became subsidiary in November 2012

5. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

5.1 CASH AND SHORT TERM FUNDS 

This item includes all cash on hand and daily bank deposits, short-term deposits of up to three 

months, and amounts deposited in an escrow account. 

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is equal to the recognized carrying amount.

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Cash on hand 16,341 26,712

Balances with central banks 3,098 17,020

Balances with other banks 55,279 86,348

74,718 130,080

Statutory reserve balances 60,541 53,130

135,259 183,210
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5.2 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Government bonds 5,143 7,181

Corporate bonds 3,551 2,948

Treasury bills and other open market instruments 67,836 89,702

76,530 99,832

Investment in government bonds and treasury bills by subsidiaries is partly for liquidity require-

ments as stipulated by local central banks and also as a source of diversification of the assets port-

folio. There are no cross-border investments in government securities by any of the subsidiaries 

and the holding company. The Group also invests in tradeable paper issued by large corporates in 

the respective markets.

All financial assets held for trading are carried at fair value.

5.3 FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Listed equities 74 969

Listed debentures 2,453 2,655

Unlisted debentures 7,146 7,078

9,673 10,701

In 2012, the listed equities comprise various counters listed on the Zimbabwe stock exchange that 

subsidiaries have invested in.

The listed debentures comprise of an investment in 10% convertible debentures issued by PG 

Industries (Zimbabwe) Limited.

5.4 LOANS AND ADVANCES

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Mortgage lending 27,377 26,162

Instalment finance 62,779 54,802

Corporate lending 467,029 450,105

Commercial and property finance 6,451 5,277

Consumer lending 356,561 386,973

920,198 923,319

less: Allowance for impairments losses -44,331 -36,746

Net loans and advances 875,867 886,573

IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE FOR LOANS AND ADVANCES 

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and advances, by class, is as 

follows:

COPO-
RATE 

LENDING

COMMER-
CIAL AND 

PROPERTY 
FINANCE

CON-
SUMER 

LENDING
TOTAL2013 

EURk

MORT-
GAGE 

LENDING

INSTAL-
MENT 

FINANCE

Opening balance 115 1,588 29,580 139 5,324 36,746

Exchange adjustment -12 4,622 -6,379 -8 55 -1,722

Charge for the year (note 4.3) 156 7,036 429 -104 1,790 9,307

Closing balance 260 13,246 23,630 27 7,169 44,331

COPO-
RATE 

LENDING

COMMER-
CIAL AND 

PROPERTY 
FINANCE

CON-
SUMER 

LENDING
TOTAL2012 

EURk

MORT-
GAGE 

LENDING

INSTAL-
MENT 

FINANCE

Opening balance 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions from business combina-
tions

121 2,396 24,887 90 6,552 34,046

Exchange adjustment -6 -94 -2,020 -7 78 -2,049

Charge for the year 0 -674 9,541 56 -790 8,133

Amounts written off 0 -94 -2,591 0 -514 -3,199

Interest accrued on impaired loans 
and advances

0 54 -237 0 -2 -185

Closing balance 115 1,588 29,580 139 5,324 36,746

The changes in impairment losses included in the allowances for losses on loans and advances 

recognized under assets were as follows:

SPECIFIC ALLOWANCE FOR 
CREDIT  LOSS COLLECTIVE IMPAIRMENT TOTAL

EURk 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Allowance for credit 
losses as at 1 January

29,086 0 7,660 0 36,746 0

Additions from busi-
ness combinations

0 26,397 0 7,648 0 34,045

Additions 8,801 7,618 506 515 9,307 8,133

Utilisation 0 -3,200 0 0 0 -3,200

Exchange rate adjust-
ment

-1,553 -1,729 -169 -503 -1,722 -2,232

Closing balance 36,334 29,086 7,997 7,660 44,331 36,746
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5.5 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Available-for-sale

 Listed equities 234 0

 Unlisted equities 81 844

 Unlisted investment 948 0

Held to maturity

Promissory notes 4,353 4,475

5,615 5,319

The investments in unlisted equities are accounted for at fair value. Refer to fair value note under 

financial risk management for details.

The promissory notes are partial security for the loan from BIFM. The promissory notes earn a 

fixed interest of 10.25% p.a., and are redeemable on 31 March 2015.

5.6 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS AND CURRENT TAX ASSETS

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Trade receivables 450 287

Inventories 273 310

Prepayments 18,772 15,128

Other assets 3,329 5,488

22,824 21,213

Current tax assets 1,595 3,147

24,419 24,360

As of 30 June 2013, the nominal amount of trade receivables stood at EUR 450k (prior year: EUR 

287k); specific bad debt allowances were deducted from the nominal value. See below for mo-

vements in the provision for impairment of receivables (charges for the year are included under 

other operating expenses):

INDIVIDU-
ALLY DETER-

MINED TO BE 
IMPAIRED

INDIVIDU-
ALLY DETER-

MINED TO BE 
IMIPAIRED 

EURk 2013 2012

Opening balance 0 40

Charge for the year 0 0

Usage 0 -40

Reversal 0 0

Closing balance 0 0

Trade receivables are current and non-interest bearing. 

The carrying amount of inventories recognized stood at EUR 273k (prior year: EUR 310k). Invento-

ries are recognized at cost less impairment losses and are not subject to restrictions on disposal. 

5.7 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method 40,632 35,001

Investments in associates measured at fair value through profit or loss 11,422 18,994

Joint ventures 0 100

52,054 54,095

STRATEGIC BANKING INVESTMENTS MEASURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EQUITY METHOD

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Carrying value at the beginning of the year 35,001 0

Additions from business combinations 0 1,364

Additions 431 22,713

Exchange rate adjustment 559 -63

Share of profits (losses) 1,792 3,711

Tax 0 1

Share of other comprehensive income 2,849 7,275

40,632 35,001

ASSOCIATES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (IAS 39 AND IAS 28.1) 

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

BANGE 0 7,592

Brainworks 6,580 6,580

RHEAL 3,757 3,737

iVeri 734 734

evriPay 351 351

11,422 18,994

BANCO NACIONAL DE GUINEA ECUATORIAL (BANGE)

On 15 May 2013, ADC announced a successful exit from its 25% shareholding in Banco Nacional 

de Guinea Ecuatorial (BANGE) to co-shareholders in the bank. A purchase price of EUR 9.0 million 

was agreed resulting in a revaluation gain of EUR 1,408k.
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5.8 DEPOSITS

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Deposits

Deposits from banks 108,707 104,206

Deposits from other customers 863,619 937,685

972,326 1,041,891

Payable on demand

Corporate customers 201,562 171,748

Public Sector 28,255 37,870

Retail Customers 64,020 76,994

Other financial institutions 13,937 43,640

Banks 19,973 9,942

327,748 340,194

Term deposits

Corporate customers 337,386 247,539

Public sector 40,161 248,635

Retail customers 42,407 20,467

Other financial institutions 135,891 90,791

Bank 88,733 94,264

644,578 701,697

Geographical analysis

Botswana 428,131 403,977

Mozambique 145,283 136,320

Tanzania 104,990 112,040

Zambia 92,649 77,376

Zimbabwe 201,273 312,177

972,326 1,041,891

5.9 BORROWED FUNDS

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

Convertible bond 0 9,560

Other borrowed funds 97,754 115,112

Bond with warrants attached 37,435 36,909

135,189 161,581

A. CONVERTIBLE BOND

During 2011, the BancABC issued a US Dollar denominated convertible loan to International Fi-

nance Corporation (IFC) for USD 13.5 (EUR 10.2 million). The loan attracted interest of 6 months 

LIBOR +3.75% per annum, payable semi-annually and it is convertible at IFC‘s option. 

On 22nd August 2012, the BancABC modified the loan into a Botswana Pula denominated loan. 

The present value of the new cash flows discounted at the previous effective interest rate were 

not materially different from those of the old loan and therefore the loan was not de-recognised 

but the effective interest rate was adjusted for this difference in cash flows. The equity component 

of the loan, derived as the difference between the fair value of the combined instrument and the 

fair value of the loan, was transferred to equity. The revised loan attracts interest at the 91-day 

Bank of Botswana Certificate yield rate + 4.10% per annum, payable quarterly and it is convertible 

at IFC’s option at BWP 3.24 per share at any time up to 12 May 2013. 

IFC converted their loan as at 25 April 2013 into equity. On 27 May 2013, ADC’s subsidiary,  

BancABC, has announced the allotment of 24,080,230 ordinary shares to the International Fi-

nance Corporation (IFC), a member of the World Bank Group, upon the conversion of a convertible 

loan of BWP 78.0 million (EUR 7.0 million).

B. OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

EURk 30.06.2013 31.12.2012

National Development Bank of Botswana Limited 7,184 9,251

BIFM Capital Investment Fund One (Pty) Ltd. 22,769 31,301

Afrexim Bank 32,151 30,649

Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited 0 11,401

Other  35,650 32,509

97,754 115,112

Fair value

National Development Bank of Botswana Limited 7,243 9,516

BIFM Capital Investment Fund One (Pty) Ltd. 28,276 39,243

Afrexim Bank 32,210 31,151

Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited 0 11,401

Other 36,153 32,509

103,883 123,820

C. BOND WITH WARRANTS ATTACHED

 

Effective 01 June 2012, ADC issued a bond with warrants attached with a term of three years and 

a nominal value of EUR 40.0 million, divided into 400,000 bearer bonds of EUR 100.00 each. Each 

bond is initially linked to 5 warrants issued by ADC. The 2,000,000 warrants are detachable and 

entitle their holders to acquire 2,000,000 no-par-value bearer shares in ADC with a notional share 

in its issued capital of EUR 1.00 per share subject to payment of the exercise price. The exercise 

price stands at EUR 14.00 per share. The warrant holders may exercise their options from 1 June 

2012 until 31 May 2015. The bond with warrants attached has a nominal coupon of 6% p.a. The 

proceeds of the issue will particularly be used to acquire shares in BancABC. The bonds were ini-

tially recognized at their fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest 

method. 

Both interest expenses allocable to the nominal amount (EUR 1,190k) and compounding expenses 

(EUR 526k) have been recognized under interest and similar expense. 
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EURk 2013 2012

Maturity analysis

On demand to one month 38,900 227

One to three month 2,150 4,010

Three months to one year 9,787 75,949

Over one year 84,351 81,394

135,189 161,581

5.10 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorder as assets or lia-

bilities together with their notional amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the amount 

of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in 

the value of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions 

outstanding at the year-end are indicative of neither the market nor the credit risk.

30.06.2013 31.12.2012

EURk ASSETS LIABILI-
TIES

NOTIONAL 
AMOUNT ASSETS LIABILI-

TIES
NOTIONAL 
AMOUNT

Derivatives held for trading

Forward foreign exchange 
contracts - held for trading

1,679 42 86,543 2,426 272 102,968

Call option - Union Bank of 
Nigeria (UBN)

2,443 0 2,443 2,443 0 2,443

Derivatives designated at fair 
value through profit or loss“

Equity derivative 0 2,299 2,299 0 1,936 1,936

Derivatives used as fair value 
hedges

Cross-currency interest rate 
swaps

0 452 7,711 870 0 9,251

4,122 2,792 98,995 5,739 2,208 116,598

5.11 EQUITY

ISSUED CAPITAL

Issued capital is stated at nominal value. The Company’s issued capital (share capital) amounts to 

EUR 8,606,764.00 and is divided into 8,606,764 no-par value registered common shares (no-par 

value shares), each with a nominal value of EUR 1.00.

OTHER RESERVES

EURk
PROPERTY 

REVALUATI-
ON RESERVE

AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE 
RESERVE

FOREIGN 
CURRENCY 

TRANSALTI-
ON RESERVE

OTHER 
CAPITAL 
RESERVE

TREASU-
RY SHARE 

RESERVE
TOTAL

At 31 December 2011 0 0 99 11,187 0 11,286

Net unrealised losses on 
available-for-sale financial 
investments

0 156 0 0 0 156

Acquisition on non-cont-
rolling interests 

0 0 0 -2,181 0 -2,181

Other 0 0 0 3,947 0 3,947

Share of reserves in asso-
ciate companies

10,172 2,768 -264 -5,487 86 7,275

Foreign currency trans-
lation

0 0 -5,036 0 0 -5,036

At 31 December 2012 10,172 2,924 -5,201 7,466 86 15,447

Net unrealised losses on 
available-for-sale financial 
investments

0 -18 0 0 0 -18

Other 0 0 0 -2,477 0 -2,477

Share of reserve in asso-
ciate companies

2,993 55 -128 -16 -55 -2,849

Foreign currency trans-
lation

-798 0 1,118 0 0 320

As 30 June 2013 12,367 2,961 -4,211 4,973 31 16,121
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5.12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

A. CLASSES, CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following tables show the breakdown of carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets 

and financial liabilities by class and category of financial instrument:

2013 2012

EURk CARRYING 
AMOUNT

FAIR 
VALUE

CARRYING 
AMOUNT

FAIR 
VALUE

Financial assets measured at fair value
Other financial assets held for trading

Government bonds 5,143 5,143 7,181 7,181

Corporate bonds 3,551 3,551 2,948 2,948

Treasury bills 67,836 67,836 89,703 89,703

Derivative financial instruments 4,122 4,122 4,869 4,869

Fair value option

Financial assets designated at fair value 9,673 9,673 10,701 10,701

Investment in associates 11,422 11,422 18,994 18,994

Derivative financial instruments used for hedging

Derivatives used for hedging 0 0 870 870

Available-for-sale investments

Investment  securities 1,262 1,262 844 844

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and receivables

Cash and short term funds 135,259 135,259 183,210 183,210

Loans and advances 875,867 826,290 886,572 836,389

Other current assets 22,551 22,551 20,903 20,903

Held-to-maturity investments

Investment securities 4,353 4,353 4,475 4,475

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value option

Derivative financial instruments 2,340 2,340 2,208 2,208

Derivative financial instruments used for hedging

Derivative used for hedging 452 452 0 0

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Deposits 972,326 972,326 1,041,891 1,041,891

Creditors and accruals 25,193 25,193 35,954 35,954

Borrowed funds 135,189 141,318 161,581 161,581

The Group adopted the amendments to IFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the 

balance sheet at fair value. This requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the 

following fair value measurement hierarchy:

 — Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

 — Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly (that is as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); or

 — Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, 

unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 

30 June 2013:

30.06.2013 31.12.2012

EURk
QUOTED 

PRICES 
LEVEL1

OBSER-
VABLE 

INPUTS 
LEVEL 2

UNOB-
SER-

VABLE 
INPUTS 
LEVEL 3

TOTAL 
AT FAIR 

VALUE

QUOTED 
PRICES 
LEVEL1

OBSER-
VABLE 

INPUTS 
LEVEL 2

UNOB-
SER-

VABLE 
INPUTS 
LEVEL 3

TOTAL 
AT FAIR 

VALUE

Other financial assets 
held for trading

0 76,530 0 76,530 0 99,832 0 99,832

Financial assets desig-
nated at fair value1 2,527 0 7,146 9,672 3,624 0 7,077 10,701

Derivative financial 
assets

0 4,122 0 4,122 0 5,739 0 5,739

Investment securities2 0 0 0 0 0 0 844 844

Investments in associ-
ates IAS393 0 0 11,422 11,422 0 0 18,994 18,994

Total assets at fair 
value

2,527 80,651 18,568 101,746 3,624 105,571 26,915 136,110

Derivative financial 
liabilities4 0 0 2,299 2,299 0 0 2,208 2,208

Total liabilities at fair 
value

0 0 2,299 2,299 0 0 2,208 2,208

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices 

at the balance sheet date.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily available from an exchange, dealer, 

broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and 

regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted price used for finan-

cial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1. 

Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily quoted equity investments classified as trading 

securities or available-for-sale.

1    Level 3 input: In estimating the fair value of instruments under level 3 at 31 March 2013, the following assumptions were 
applied in this category:

     - volatility in the price of the underlying equity instrument of 50% (2012: 50%); and
     - credit spread of 12.54% (2012: 12.54%).
2   The investment securities comprise of unlisted equities. The unlisted equities have been valued based on the value of 

recent trades in these equities where available. They comprise of shareholdings smaller than 20% in a number of private 
companies.

3   Investments in associates classified as “assets at fair value through profit or loss” (IAS 39) in accordance with the option 
provided for in IAS 28.1 (note 5.7.)

4   For the detailed assumptions relating to the valuation of level 3 derivative financial liabilities see table below.
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The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-

the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques 

maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on 

entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observab-

le, the instrument is included in level 2. Financial assets held for trading and derivatives under level 

2 have been valued using market interest and exchange rates.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 

included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

 — quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

 — the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future 

cash flows based on observable yield curves;

 — the fair value of foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the 

balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value; and

 — other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for 

the remaining financial instruments.

The movement in instruments included in the level 3 analysis is as follows:

2013

EURk DEBT OR EQUITY 
INVESTMENTS

TOTAL ASSETS 
AT FAIR VALUE

DERIVATIVE 
FINANCIAL 

LIABILITIES

TOTAL AT FAIR 
VALUE

Opening balance 26,915 26,915 2,208 2,208

Total gains or losses 0 0

- in profit and loss 1,482 1,482 1,137 0

-in other comprehensive income 18 18 0 0

Purchases 494 494 0 0

Settlemens -9,000 -9,000 0 0

Exchange rate adjustment -1,340 -1,340 -1,046 45

Exchange out of level 3 0 0 0 0

Closing balance 18,568 18,568 2,299 2,253

2012

EURk TRADING  
DERIVATIVES

DEBT OR 
EQUITY IN-

VESTMENTS

TOTAL AS-
SETS AT FAIR 

VALUE

DERIVATI-
VE FINAN-

CIAL LIABI-
LITIES

TOTAL LIA-
BILITIES AT 
FAIR VALUE

Opening balance 4,718 23,710 28,428 0 0

Transfer from business acquisition 0 11,192 11,192 4,594 4,594

Total gains or losses - in profit and 
loss

-4,718 -487 -5,205 1,919 1,919

Purchases 0 211 211 0 0

Settlemens 0 -8,530 -8,530 0 0

Transfer to equity 0 0 0 -4,305 -4,305

Exchange rate adjustment 0 819 819 0 0

Closing balance 0 26,915 26,915 2,208 2,208

6. CREDIT-RELATED COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Credit exposures relating to off-balance sheet items are as follows:

EURk

Guarantees 68,560

Letter of credit, loan commitments and other contingent liabilities 14,914

83,474

83% (2012: 75%) of the total maximum exposure is derived from loans and advances, while 7% 

(2012: 8%) represents financial assets held for trading.

Management is confident in its ability to continue to control an sustain minimal exposure of credit 

risk to the Group resulting from both its loans and advances portfolio and financial assets held for 

trading based on the following:

 — 91% (2012: 91%) of the gross loans and advances portfolio is categorized in the top two gra-

des of the internal rating system.

 — 82% (2012: 85%) of the gross loans and advances portfolio is considered to be “neither past 

due nor impaired”.

 — 9% (2012: 9%) of gross loans and advances are “individually impaired”.

 — The Group continues to improve its credit selection and monitoring processes; and

 — Loans and advances to corporates are generally backed by collateral.
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7. RELATED PARTIES

Related parties include management board members and senior executives, supervisory board 

members, and close family members of these persons. In addition, companies classified as re-

lated parties include the shareholders, as well as all consolidated subsidiaries, joint ventures and 

associates. Details of the nature, volume of transactions and the balances with related entities 

are as follows:

EURk

ASSOCIATES:

SERVICES 
RENDERED 

TO RELATED 
PARTIES

SERVICES 
PURCHASED  
FROM RELA-

TED PARTIES

RELATED PAR-
TY RECEIVA-

BLES

LIABILITIES 
TO RELATED 

PARTIES

Banco Nacional de Guinea 
Equatorial, Equatorial Guinea

2013 0 0 0 0

2012 173 0 40 0

ABC Holdings Limited, Gabaro-
ne, Botswana1 2012 0 0 0 7,962

As at reporting date, the Group held a convertible loan of EUR 7,686k (USD 10.0m) from ABC 

Holdings Ltd., Botswana. The convertible loan was concluded effective 30 September 2011. It has 

a term of five years and bears interest of 10% p.a. The convertible loan was raised to match the 

local capital requirements of ABC Holdings Ltd. for an investment to be made together with ADC.
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OTHER TRANSACTIONS
YEAR

SERVICES 
PURCHASED FROM 
RELATED PARTIES

AMOUNTS OWED TO 
RELATED PARTIES

ADC BDS Ltd., Republic of Mauritius 2013 0 0

2012 1,737 123

Altira AG, Frankfurt am Main, Germany2 2012 138 32

ADC Management GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, 
Germany2 2012 1,051 0

Silvia Quandt & Cie.AG, Frankfurt am Main2 2012 6 0

Silvia Quandt & Cie.Ltd., London2 2012 20 0

Remuneration of the supervisory board and cost 
reimbursement

2013 35 0

2012 47 0

8. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We hereby confirm that, to the best of our knowledge, the interim consolidated financial state-

ments give a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the Group and the 

group management report gives a true and fair view of business performance including financial 

performance and the situation of the Group, and describes the main opportunities and risks rela-

1      Became subsidiary 27 July 2012
2    Discontinued being related party November 2012

ting to the Group’s anticipated development in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 

framework. 

9. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

REGISTRATION OF STOCK CORPORATION (AG)

On 26 July 2013, the transformation of ADC African Development Corporation GmbH & Co. KGaA 

into a stock corporation (AG) was successfully completed with its entry into the commercial re-

gister of the Local Court of Frankfurt am Main. Trading of ADC African Development Corporation 

GmbH & Co. KGaA’s shares in the Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange ceased at same 

day after the close of trading. The inclusion, as well as the immediate resumption of trading, of 

ADC African Development Corporation AG’s shares in the Entry Standard of the Frankfurt Stock 

Exchange commenced the following business day, on 29 July 2013.

TEN PERCENT CAPITAL INCREASE FROM AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

On 30 July 2013, ADC registered a capital increase, increasing the current share capital of EUR 

8,606,764 through the partial utilization of existing authorized capital by almost 10%, issuing 

860,676 new registered shares and reaching a new share capital of EUR 9,467,440. A strategic 

investor subscribed to all the shares at EUR 9.50 per share in a private placement, raising EUR 8.2 

million for ADC. The capital increase was undertaken by cash contribution and did not exceed 10% 

of the existing share capital; subscription rights by existing shareholders have, therefore, been 

excluded pursuant to § 186 para. 3 sentence 4 German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) in order to 

utilize the authorized capital which expired on 31 July 2013.

APPOINTMENT OF NEW MANAGEMENT BOARD MEMBER

The Supervisory Board appointed Karima Ola, Chief Investment Officer of ADC, as the second 

member of the Management Board (Vorstand) on 13 August 2013. 

APPOINTMENT OF NEW SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM supported the recommendation of the Supervisory Board to increase the number of 

Supervisory Board members from three to six. ADC is happy to announce that Arnold Ekpe, Verna 

Eggleston and Oltmann Siemens will become members of the Supervisory Board with entry of 

the increased size of the Supervisory Board in the articles of association of the company registe-

red in the commercial registry. Arnold Ekpe is former CEO of Ecobank, which is one of the most 

prominent pan-African banking groups with operations in many African countries and therefore a 

prominent member in the African banking community. Subsequent to the formal registration of 

the increased size of the Supervisory Board in the articles of association of the company in the 

commercial registry, Arnold Ekpe was appointed Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory in the Super-

visory Board meeting after the AGM on 14 August 2013. Verna Eggleston works for Bloomberg 

Philanthropies and is very well connected in the US market which will offer ADC greater access to 
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the US network. Oltmann Siemens is a former representative of the World Bank Group in Europe 

and has a very strong network among development finance institutions. Furthermore his election 

adds a German presence to the Supervisory Board.

APPOINTMENT OF NEW GROUP AUDITOR AT AGM

The AGM appointed KPMG as group auditor for ADC. The reason for the shift from Ernst & Young 

to KPMG is to align around a single auditor for all subsidiary and investee companies from the 

2013 fiscal year, including BancABC, UBN and UGPL. A single group auditor increases the effici-

ency of the auditing process. These increased efficiencies go hand in hand with more transparent 

reporting standards and cost savings since the coordination between various auditors vanish.

Frankfurt am Main, Germany, 30 June 2013

signed Dirk Harbecke

Chief Executive Officer (Vorstandsvorsitzender)

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
CORPORATE CALENDER DATE EVENT

29 November 2013 Release Interim Report 9M 2013

30 April 2014 Release Annual Report 2014

ANALYST MEETINGS & OTHER EVENTS

27 August 2013
DVFA, SCC _ Small Cap Conference 2013, 

Frankfurt, Germany

25 September 2013
Frankfurt, Germany – Frankfurt School, M&A 

and Private Equity Conference, Private Equity in 
Africa

01 October 2013 London, UK – Citi Frontier Markets Symposium

08 October 2013
New York, USA – Standard Bank, African Inves-

tors’ Conference

11 – 13 November 2013
Frankfurt, Germany, Deutsche Börse / KfW Ger-

man Equity Forum 2013

04 – 05 December 2013
Munich, Germany – MKK – Munich Capital Mar-

kets Conference

CONTACT INFORMATION
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ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AG

GERMAN HEADQUARTER:

Grueneburgweg 18

60322 Frankfurt am Main

Germany

T  +49 69 719 12 80 119

F  +49 69 719 12 80 999

investor-relations@african-development.com

www.african-development.com

MANAGEMENT BOARD (VORSTAND)

Dirk Harbecke, Chairman
Karima Ola

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Alastair Newton, Chairman
Arnold Ekpe, Vice-Chairman
Jyrki Koskelo

Oltmann Siemens

Pierre Lorinet

Verna Eggleston

AFRICAN REPRESENTATION

Port Louis, Mauritius

ADC African Development Corporation

1003 Alexander House

35 Ebène Cybercity

Republic of Mauritius

CONTACT INFORMATION




